
 

 

SCR - Transport Board 
 

 
 

19 July 2019 at 10.00 am 
 
Venue: 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 

 

Agenda 
 

Agenda 
Ref No 

Subject Lead Page 
 

1   Welcome and Apologies  
 

Mayor Dan 
Jarvis 

 

2   Declarations of Interest by individual Members in 
relation to any item of business on the agenda  
 

Mayor Dan 
Jarvis 

 

3   Urgent items / Announcements  
 

Mayor Dan 
Jarvis 

 

4   Public Questions of Key Decisions  
 

Mayor Dan 
Jarvis 

 

5   Governance Terms of Reference  
 

Mr Mark 
Lynam 

3 - 22 

6   Centrally Managed Local Transport Programmes  
 

Mr A 
Linton 

23 - 32 

7   Update On The Bus Review  
 

Kaczmarek 33 - 42 

8   Transport Strategy Implementation Plans  
 

Mr Mark 
Lynam 

43 - 46 

9   Integrated Rail Plan  
 

Mr Mark 
Lynam 

47 - 50 

10   Active Travel Update  
 

Zanzottera 51 - 56 

11   Transport for the North Update  
 

Mr Mark 
Lynam 

57 - 80 

12   Supertram Update  
 

Mr T 
Taylor 

81 - 86 

13   SYPTE Transport Executive Board Dashboard  
 

Mr S 
Edwards 

87 - 94 

14   Any Other Business  
 

Mayor Dan 
Jarvis 

 

Date of next meeting: TBC 
At:  11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
  

 

 
1. Introduction 

 
 1.1 Following consultation with partners and a review of the models in other mayoral combined 

authorities, the MCA and LEP at their meetings 17th December 2018 and 14th January 
respectively approved strengthened governance arrangements. These arrangements have 
been designed to create more efficient, effective and transparent decision-making 
processes. The MCA Constitution has been amended to reflect these new arrangements. 
From the 1st April 2019 five thematic boards, with appropriate delegations to complement 
their role in implementing policy and programmes more transparently, came into effect.   
 

2. Proposal and justification 
  

 2.1 Governance Model 
Appendix 1 to this report attaches the approved governance paper for Board Members to 
review and discuss.  
 

 2.2 Terms of Reference 
Appendix 2 of this report includes the terms of reference for the Transport Board to review 
and discuss. 
 

Purpose of Report 

This report summarises for Transport Growth Board Members the approved governance arrangements 
for the Transport Board, approved by the Mayoral Combined Authority and the Local Enterprise 
Partnership. The paper also proposes dates for future meetings. 

Freedom of Information  

Thematic Board Papers and any appendices will be made available under the Combined Authority 
Publication Scheme. This scheme commits the Authority to make information about how decisions are 
made available to the public as part of its normal business activities. 

Recommendations 

Board members are asked to: 

1. note the approved governance arrangements and clarify any issues 
2. note the proposed future scheduling of Transport Board meetings 

TRANSPORT BOARD 

17TH JULY 2019 

GOVERNANCE AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 

 2.3 Meeting Schedule 
This paper proposes that the Transport Board meets during week four of the MCA eight-
week cycle. This will allow any decisions requiring escalation to the MCA due to the value 
exceeding the delegation, to progress through the decision making process in a timely 
manner. The proposed dates are suggested below. 
 

 2.4  
Proposed Transport Board dates (week 4 
of the 8-week cycle) 

MCA Date (week 8 of the 8-week cycle) 

26/08/19 – 30/08/19 23/09/19 
21/10/19 – 25/10/19 18/11/19 
*30/12/19 - 03/01/20 27/01/20 
24/02/20 – 28/02/20 23/03/20 
04/05/20 – 08/05/20 01/06/20 
29/06/20 – 03/07/20 27/07/20 
24/08/20 – 28/08/20 21/09/20 
19/10/20 – 23/10/20 16/11/20 

 
*potentially move to week 2 or 5 to avoid Christmas and new year period. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 There is no discretion to change governance arrangements, as these have been approved 
by both the MCA and the LEP but to note, it is planned that there will be a review of 
arrangements after 6 months of meetings. 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
The delegation limit from the MCA to the sub boards is set at less than £2m. The Thematic 
Boards are also able to accept tenders and quotations for the supply of goods, materials 
and services up to a limit of £200,000. 
 

 4.2 Legal 
The changes have been captured in the MCAs Constitution and elements of the LEPs 
governance framework and came into force on 1st April 2019.  
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
 
Strong governance arrangements in the Sheffield City Region are an important mechanism 
in managing a number of corporate risks. This reflects the commitment of both the MCA 
and LEP to transparency, and the clear delineation of responsibilities between different 
elements of the decision-making system. 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
 
In line with the LEP’s Diversity Policy equality and diversity has been taken into 
consideration in the composition of the Thematic Boards.  
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 The roles and responsibilities of the new Thematic Boards are explained in the SCR 
Assurance Framework and the MCA Constitution which is published on the SCR website. 
All meeting papers, minutes and membership of the Thematic Boards will be published on 
the SCR website.  In addition, members of the public can submit questions to the Thematic 
Board and receive a written response.   
 
 
 

Page 4



 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  Appendix 1 – MCA paper on revised governance arrangements 
Appendix 2 - Terms of Reference 
 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR  Claire James 
POST  Senior Governance & Compliance Manager 

Director responsible Mark Lynam 
Email Mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 

Telephone 0114 2203445 
 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

1. Introduction 
 

 1.1 Since its formation in 2014 the Sheffield City Region Combined Authority (CA) has worked 
closely with the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) to deliver the outcomes identified in the 
Strategic Economic Plan (SEP). With the election of the City Region’s first metro mayor, this 
marks a new era of greater and more direct accountability on decisions at this scale.  
 

 1.2 As a Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA), it is important that the Board’s decision-making 
process is efficient, effective, transparent and provides accountability to local residents and 
businesses. The SCR Executive has therefore reviewed its processes, sought feedback 
from partners and analysed other MCAs arrangements to seek to develop a proposal on 
which consensus can be achieved.  
 

 1.3 Through the consultation with partners a range of views were expressed on the way 

Purpose of Report 

Following consultation with partners and a review of the models in other mayoral combined authorities, 
a proposal has been developed to strengthen governance in the SCR. This seeks to build upon the 
best of current arrangements to create more efficient, effective and transparent decision-making 
processes. This is based on establishing a Transport Board that brings together the existing Transport 
Executive Board and the SYPTE Executive Board. In addition, four other boards would be in place for 
Business Growth, Skills and Employment; Housing; and Infrastructure, who would have appropriate 
delegations to complement their role in implementing policy and programmes more transparently.   

Thematic Priority 

Cross cutting – the model impacts on all elements of the SCR CA and LEP decision making.  

Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

The paper will be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme 

Recommendations 

 That Leaders agree the proposed approach to strengthen governance in the SCR, as set out in 
section 2.  

17th December 2018  

Strengthening Governance: efficient, effective and transparent decision making in the Sheffield 

City Region  

Page 7



 

forward. These highlighted a number of common themes, including: 
 

 Leadership - The importance of having stronger oversight, accountability and decision 
making of the work being undertaken by the thematic boards; 

 Accountability – Ensuring that policy is led by local leaders and provides articulation of 
City Region priorities that residents and businesses can engage with;  

 Transparency - That there is a need for greater transparency on the work being 
undertaken by the CA to ensure that the public are aware of this activity.   

 Roles and responsibilities - Providing greater clarity of what decisions can be taken by 
which part of the governance structure and by whom, improving the efficiency of the 
process, reducing the potential for duplication and confusion;  

 Space for policy development – that governance arrangements need to provide the 
opportunity to shape future policy development and priorities on topical issues;  

 Design - That form should follow function, with the need to have arrangements in place 
that will deliver the MCAs priorities;  

 Corporate governance - Improving the effectiveness of the decision-making process by 
having a forward plan in place for all sub boards, with papers and presentations provided 
five clear working days in advance; and 

 Co-ordination and collaboration - All members being sighted on the decisions being 
taken by the MCA across the different thematic areas, whilst ensuring leadership and 
timely decisions to rationalise the number of meetings.  

 
2. Overarching proposal and justification  

 
 2.1 To revise governance arrangements in the SCR, a set of principles has been developed, 

following feedback from partners. These seek to ensure that the optimum arrangements are 
established, forming a robust foundation for the decision-making process:  

 Achieving an efficient, effective and transparent model for decision making; 

 Collaborating to build collective and combined decisions to deliver the outcomes 
identified in the SEP;  

 Providing strong and accountable leadership in setting the agenda and subsequently 
delivering a defined programme of activity to rigorously realise the outcomes of the SEP; 
and 

 Scrutinising the planned and activity underway to deliver the best outcomes for the SCR 
and value for money.   

 
 2.2 Based on these principles the defining features of the proposed revised SCR governances 

are that: 

 The MCA continues to set the overall direction for the Sheffield City Region and act as 
the accountable body for all funding awarded to the LEP. The LEP will continue to 
provide thought-leadership on the economy, lead the development of economic policy 
and champion the SCR private sector. 

 The sub structure of the MCA and LEP will retain its thematic focus in the four areas of: 
business growth; skills and employment; housing and infrastructure; and transport.  

 Given the stronger model of leadership being proposed, meeting frequency will change 
from a six weekly to an eight weekly, allowing more time for work to be progressed. This 
would be supported by the establishment of urgent delegated decision-making protocols 
within the constitution to be used by exception, but as required, when a decision falls 
outside of the parameters of the cycle.  

 In addition, when the revised governance arrangements have been agreed in principle, 
they will need to be captured in a number of key documents such as the MCA 
constitution (including financial regulations) and the Assurance Framework. Subject to its 
agreement, these updated documents will be presented to the Board at its next meeting 
for approval, as part of this wider model. 

A summary of these proposed roles is set out at Annex A.  
 

 2.3 To supplement these overarching arrangements a proposal has been developed to build 
upon and strengthen the existing model by creating an integrated Transport board (that 

Page 8



 

would bring together the existing Executive Board with the SYPTE Exec Board) and four 
other sub boards with defined delegated power. This would comprise:  

 Merging the existing Transport Executive Board (TEB), with the PTE Executive Board to 
provide a single forum to discuss strategy and implementation. It is proposed that this  
Board will comprise a member of each constituent councils (to be nominated by the 
respective authority), be chaired by the Mayor, with another Leader acting as the Deputy 
Chair and contain a representative for non-constituent councils and the LEP. This Board 
will also be supported by a lead chief executive and contain the Director General of 
SYPTE, due to the legislative requirements of the PTE Board.   

 For the three remaining existing boards, following discussion with partners it is proposed 
that the infrastructure and housing agendas are separated into different boards, as the 
recent merger was an interim position. Furthermore, the Housing and Business Growth 
Boards, will also assume decision making responsibilities currently held by the Housing 
Investment (HIF) and Business Investment Fund (BIF) Panels respectively. This will be 
on the principles of decisions not being taken at a level below that of the thematic 
boards. It is proposed that all four of these Boards operate in a similar manner to the 
way the Business Investment Fund (BIF) Panel and Housing Investment (HIF) Board 
have to date, whereby delegations will be discharged through officers working with the 
Board. All decisions taken will be reported at the next meeting of the MCA as part of the 
delegated authority report. The membership of these Boards will comprise two leaders, 
with one from the constituent councils and one from the non-constituent councils, a 
member of each of the remaining councils (to be nominated by the respective authority) 
and two private sector LEP Board members, as well as a lead chief executive from a 
different authority to the leader. 

 In addition, in order to strengthen transparency on the work of the five sub boards it is 
proposed that they will: 

o Be formally embedded within the SCR MCA forward plan, publishing all key 
decisions 28 days in advance;  

o Publish papers and agendas five clear working days in advance of the meeting;  
o Provide a mechanism for members of the public to provide written questions on 

the papers, with a commitment that a response will be made in writing; and  
o Publish draft and ratified minutes within 10 days of the meeting taking place. 

 
 2.4 The proposed terms of reference …. specifies the proposed approach to decision making, 

which requires consensus from board members for a decision to be made on schemes 
under £2m. Should consensus not be reached within a thematic board the issue would be 
escalated either to the LEP (if related to policy / strategic alignment on LEP funds) or the 
MCA (if related to MCA funding or to fulfil the accountable body functions for LEP 
investment).   
 

 2.5 Subject to the agreement of this approach, it is proposed that the overview of this model is 
presented for approval at the next MCA / LEP in December and January respectively. 
Further work will also need to be undertaken to embed this approach within the Constitution 
and Assurance Framework. However, the latter document will need to be reviewed in the 
new year following the publication of Government’s updated National Assurance 
Framework.     
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 Cabinet model role, supported by officer delegations – whilst the legislation by which 
the MCA was established mean that legal cabinet models cannot be used, there is an option 
where portfolios could be established with delegations residing with officers.  
 

 3.2 Reducing the number of thematic boards – it has been suggested that the number of 
existing boards could be reduced to three, with effectively transport merging with housing 
and infrastructure into a place board. However, under such a model the SYPTE Executive 
Board would probably need to remain distinct to keep the portfolio manageable, meaning 
that there would still in effect be four boards.  
 
 

Page 9



 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
 
It is proposed that the delegation limit from the MCA to the sub boards is set at £2m. This 
would provide consistency with the limits already in place for the BIF and Housing 
Investment Boards and is below the average (financial) value of schemes currently being 
funded through the LGF programme.  
 

 4.2 Legal 
 
The changes set out in the proposed model would need to be captured in changes to the 
MCAs Constitution and elements of the LEPs governance framework when agreed. This 
could be undertaken and presented for consideration at the next meeting of the MCA. As 
part of the update to the SCR Assurance Framework it is proposed that the process by 
which business cases are published and then considered by the authority, should be 
refined, so that any comments received are captured, with the response from the scheme 
promoter included in the documentation presented for approval.  
 
The proposed merged SYPTE Board and TEB will be achieved by establishing a Board with 
a membership as set out in paragraph 2.3 above who will collectively consider strategy, 
performance, implementation and capital/revenue programme matters. Due to SYPTE being 
a separate legal entity to the MCA, with its own statutory functions, it will, in line with the 
MCA/Transport Board’s strategic direction and within the budget set by the MCA, exercise 
its operational functions through its Management Board and/or Director General (in 
accordance with the South Yorkshire Transport Area (Establishment of Executive) Order 
1973). Under the proposal SYPTE will report performance, seek direction from and consult 
with the Transport Board. Appropriate transport functions of the MCA will be delegated to 
the Transport Board, although the formal delegation by the MCA is to SCR Managing 
Director (or their representative) in consultation with the Chair of the Transport Board. 
Where there is not unanimity of the Transport Board any decision shall be referred to the 
MCA and/or LEP as appropriate. 
 
The same structure for delegations to the other Boards is proposed with the formal 
delegation being to the SCR Managing Director (or their representative) in consultation with 
the Boards Chair. Where there is not unanimity of the Board the Officer delegation is not 
exercisable and the decision in question will be escalated to the MCA and/or LEP as 
appropriate. Officer delegations are authorised by s.101 Local Government Act 1972.      
   

 4.3 Risk Management 
 
Continuing to strengthen governance arrangements in the Sheffield City Region will be an 
important mechanism in managing a number of corporate risks. This will reflect the 
commitment of both the MCA and LEP to transparency, and the clear delineation of 
responsibilities between different elements of the decision-making system.  
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
 
In developing the composition of the sub boards of the SCR governance arrangements it 
has been important to consider diversity and how this represents the breadth of the City 
Region, including factors such as geography and gender.  
  

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 If the proposed model is agreed, it will be important to clearly and effectively communicate 
when, how and what decisions are being taken and the roles of different boards within this 
process. This will be vital in signposting people to the information that they wish to find and 
in improving awareness of the activity being undertaken by the MCA and LEP collectively.  
 
As set out through the LEP Review, the SCR will need to have a corporate plan in place for 

Page 10



 

2019/20. Developing this document could further clarify these roles and purposes.  
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  Annex A – Proposed responsibilities for the boards in the governance cycle 
 

Report Author  Fiona Boden / Lyndsey Whitaker  
Post AD Policy / Senior Economic Policy Manager  

Officer responsible Ruth Adams 
Organisation SCR Executive 

Email Ruth.Adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone 0114 220 3442  

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
Other sources and references: 

Page 11

mailto:Ruth.Adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


 

Annex A – Proposed responsibilities for the boards in the governance cycle 
 

Board  Role  
 

MCA  Agree budget and corporate plan for the year and monitor’s progress 
against its achievement  

 Decision maker new programmes of activity 

 Agree policy (including thematic policy)  

 Decision maker on schemes and to receive grant over £2m and 
under £2m for general activity.  

 Accountable body for LEP funding  

 Escalation point for decisions relating to LGF where consensus 
cannot be reached (in relation to accountable body functions)  

LEP  Evaluates the health and performance of the SCR economy  

 Custodian of the Strategic Economic Plan  

 Partner in development of the Local Industrial Strategy  

 Responsible to government for funding awarded to deliver the SEP  

 Voice of the private sector in decision making process 

 Setting the parameters of offer to business  

 Approve new projects to enter into the pipeline for LEP investment, 
on the basis of strategic fit    

 Escalation point for decisions relating to LGF where consensus 
cannot be reached (in relation to alignment to strategy / strategic fit) 

Thematic boards   Thematic policy development  

 New programme development  

 To enact MCA and LEP agreed policy  

 Approve schemes with a value of less than £2m 

 Accept grants with a value of less than £2m for a defined purpose 
linked to the Board’s theme   

 Monitor programme delivery and performance  

 Specific statutory responsibilities related to the discharge of the 
SYPTE Executive Board functions, for the Transport Board 

Appraisal Panel   No decision-making powers  

 Independent of scheme promoters, the panel is responsible for 
making recommendations from the SCR MCA Statutory Officers to 
the respective decision-making board  

  
  

 

Page 12



 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  

 
Transport Board 

 
Terms of Reference 

 

Page 13



1. Purpose and Role 
 
1.1 The purpose of the Transport Board is to drive the development and delivery 

of the SCR’s thematic programme and provide direction for and oversee the 
performance of South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE). 
 

1.2 The role of the Transport Board is to: 
 

• Assist in the development of the transport strategy and strategies for its 
implementation; 

• Shape future policy development and priorities on issues related to 
transport; 

• Develop new transport programmes; 
• Make investment decisions within the agreed budget and policy on 

transport, as delegated by the Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA);  
• Accept grants with a value of less than £2 million; 
• Monitor programme delivery and performance on transport; and 
• Oversee the performance of SYPTE in delivering operational transport 

services and its capital programme and providing SYPTE with political 
direction. 

 
2. Responsibilities 

 
 2.1 The Transport Board is responsible for: 
 
  Funding 

 
• Approving, deferring or rejecting applications for transport projects in 

the SCR’s pipeline that fall within the financial limit of delegated 
authority, and which are within the transport budget agreed by the 
MCA and Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP); 

• Making recommendations to the MCA to approve, defer or reject 
applications for transport projects in the SCR’s pipeline that exceed the 
financial limit of delegated authority, and which are within the transport 
budget; and 

• Making recommendations to the LEP to approve, defer or reject 
applications for transport projects to form part of the SCR’s pipeline; 

• Recommending for approval to the MCA the capital programme of 
SYPTE; and 

• Recommending for approval to the MCA the revenue budget of 
SYPTE. 

  

Page 14



  Strategy and Policy 
 

• Ensuring that transport policy agreed by the MCA and LEP is enacted 
effectively through appropriate investments and by SYPTE; 

• Reviewing economic intelligence and evidence of SCR economic 
performance on transport (e.g. patronage statistics, modal use, journey 
times) and identifying propositions to accelerate growth; and 

• Developing and managing relationships with key stakeholders and 
partners. 
 

  Programme Delivery 
 

• Commissioning of activity to deliver and implement the SCR’s priorities 
on transport; and 

• Monitoring the transport capital programme and project delivery. 
 

Performance and Risk Management 
 

• Reviewing project performance, outputs and outcomes; 
• Identifying and recommending mitigations for any programme risks or 

poor performance; and 
• Escalating any strategic, policy or programme risks to the MCA and 

LEP Boards.  
 

 2.2 The Transport Board will provide leadership on the following thematic issues: 
 

• Transport for the North, including Rail North; and 
• HS2. 

 
2.3  The Transport Board will be consulted on commercial and residential 

development projects which incorporate link roads or junction improvements 
but decisions on such projects will be taken by either the Infrastructure or 
Housing Boards as appropriate. 

 
3. Delegated Authority 

 
3.1 In order to enact its responsibilities, the Transport Board will have delegated 

authority from the MCA to approve investment decisions for agreed pipeline 
projects up to £2 million. 

 
3.2 The Transport Board will have delegated authority to accept grants with a value 

of less than £2 million. 
 
3.3 The Transport Board may refer a matter or decision within their delegated 

authority to the MCA or LEP. 
 

Page 15



3.4 The Transport Board will have delegated authority to accept a tender or 
quotation for the supply of goods, materials or services for which financial 
provision has been made in the Authority’s Revenue Budget up to a limit of 
£200,000.00 in value for any one transaction. 

 
3.5  The Transport Board has delegated responsibility for the specific transport 

functions of the MCA listed in Annex 1. 
 
4. Membership 

 
4.1 The Transport Board will be chaired by the SCR Mayor.  A member of the MCA 
 will be appointed as the Deputy Chair. 

 
4.2 Membership of the Transport Board will comprise of: 

 
• SCR Mayor; 
• One Leader from the MCA (from a constituent Local Authority); 
• A nominated representative for each of the remaining three constituent 

Local Authorities; 
• A representative for non-constituent Local Authorities 
• A lead Chief Executive from a Local Authority; 
• A private sector LEP Board member;  
• The Director General of the SYPTE; and 
• The SCR MCA Head of Paid Service (or their nominated 

representative). 
 

4.3  Board members can nominate a deputy to attend meetings of the Board in their 
absence.  All deputies must be named and must complete a Register of 
Interests Form. 

 
5. Frequency 

 
 5.1 The Transport Board will meet on an eight-weekly cycle. 
 
6. Secretariat 

 
6.1  The Sheffield City Region Executive Team will provide the secretariat for the 

Transport Board. 
 

6.2 Papers and presentations for Board meetings will be circulated to Board 
members five clear working days in advance of the meeting. 

 
 

 

Page 16



7. Attendance 
 
7.1  Consistent attendance at the Transport Board meetings is essential and 
 attendance will be recorded. 

 
8. Quorum 

 
8.1  Meetings of the Transport Board will be quorate when two-thirds of members 

are present. A member who is obliged to withdraw under the Code of Conduct 
for Members shall not be counted towards the quorum. 

 
8.2  A Board member may be counted in the quorum if they are able to participate 

in the meeting by remote means e.g. telephone, video or electronic link and 
remain available for the discussion and decision items on the agenda. 

 
9. Decision Making 

 
 9.1 Board decisions are legally taken as follows: 
 

i. Matters at the Board relating to the functions of the MCA, by the Head 
of Paid Service (or their nominated representative) in consultation with 
the Chair; 

ii. Matters at the Board relating to the functions of SYPTE, the Director 
General of SYPTE. 

 
By protocol, decisions will not be taken in accordance with i above unless there 
is Board consensus for the decision. Where consensus cannot be reached the 
issue will be escalated to the MCA and/or the LEP as appropriate for final 
decision. 

 
9.2 Decisions made by the Transport Board will be presented to the MCA Board 

in a written Delegated Decisions Report at the next meeting.  As the delegating 
body, the MCA will, for decisions taken under 9.1(i) above, have the right to 
review or amend decisions made by the Transport Board where such decision 
has not been acted upon subject to giving due reason for doing so. 

 
10. Conflicts of Interest 

 
 Register of Interests 
 

10.1 All Board Members must complete a Register of Interests Form within 28 days 
of being appointed to the Transport Board.  This must disclose any disclosable 
pecuniary interests (as defined in the The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable 

Page 17



Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012) for the Member, their spouse, their civil 
partner or partner.  Completed Register of Interests Forms for all Board 
Members are published on the SCR website. 

 
10.2  It is the responsibility of every Transport Board Member to ensure that their 

Register of Interests Form is up-to-date and declare any new interests within 
28 days of this being known. 

    
10.3 Interests declared by Transport Board Members will be listed on the SCR’s 

Register of Members’ Interests. 
 
 Declarations of Interest at Board Meetings 
 

10.4  It is the responsibility of Board members to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interest (as defined in the The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012) and any other personal interests whether 
financial or non-financial   in specific agenda items at the start of each 
Transport Board meeting.  

 
11. Decisions between meetings 

 
11.1 This procedure is to be used only by exception. 
 
11.2 When a matter or decision falls outside the parameters of the meeting cycle, 

the Transport Board will be permitted to make decisions through this 
procedure. If the matter is a Key Decision the procedure in Part 5B (Access to 
Information Procedure Rules) of the Constitution also needs to be complied 
with. 

 
11.3  The Head of Paid Service (or their nominated representative), in consultation 

with the Chair of the Transport Board, will contact Board Members by email to 
notify them of the following: 

  
• Details of the matter requiring comment and/or decision; 
• The name of the person or persons making or putting forward the 

proposal/decision; 
• The reason why the matter cannot wait until the next Board; and 
• The date responses are required by. 

 
Two working days after the close of responses, the following will be circulated 
to all Board Members: 

 
• The outcome of the decision taken (including responses received in 

agreement and responses received in disagreement); 

Page 18



• The date when any decision comes into effect; and 
• Any mitigating action taken to address stated views or concerns. 

 
 11.4 Decisions and actions taken will be retrospectively reported to the next meeting 

 of the Transport Board and MCA in accordance with paragraph 9.2 above. 
 
12. Advisory Groups 

 
12.1  The Transport Board will be supported in making investment decisions by the 

SCR’s independent Appraisal Panel.  The Appraisal Panel will assess all 
applications for funding and will present their findings and recommendations 
to the Board on whether the application should be approved, deferred or 
rejected. 

 
12.2  The Transport Board is permitted to form Task and Finish groups of key 

stakeholders and advisors to assist in the management and monitoring of 
individual programmes or projects.  Any such groups are purely advisory and 
must submit reports to the Transport Board. 

 
13. Transparency 

 
 Key Decisions 

 
13.1 Decisions to be taken by the Transport Board will be published in the SCR 

Forward Plan of Key Decisions on the SCR website 28 days in advance of the 
decision being made. 

 
13.2 Questions and comments submitted by the public on the pending decisions will 

be notified to the Transport Board and will be responded to in writing. 
 
 Meeting Papers 
 

13.3  Agendas and papers for the Transport Board will be published on the SCR 
website at least five clear working days before the meeting date. 

 
Exemptions 
 
13.4 Where reports or information for Board meetings is exempt from disclosure 

under Section 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 or the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000, these papers will either be reserved or specific 
information in the paper will be redacted. 

 

Page 19



13.5  Reserved papers and reports can still be requested under the Freedom of 
Information Act.  Requests will be considered on a case by case basis (taking 
into consideration such factors as timing, any applicable exemptions and the 
public interest test). 

 
Meeting Record 
 
13.6 Draft minutes will be published on the SCR website within ten days of the 

Transport Board meeting taking place.  The meeting record (approved minutes) 
will be published on the SCR website within ten clear working days of the 
subsequent Transport Board meeting.  

 
14. Amendments to Terms of Reference 

 
 14.1 These Terms of Reference will be reviewed annually.  Any changes will be 

 approved by the MCA and LEP. 
 

  

Page 20



Annex 1 – Specific Transport Functions of the MCA 
 
1. Granting approval to SYPTE to promote or oppose any Bill in Parliament pursuant to 

section 10(1)(xxix), Transport Act 1968; 

2. Making a written request to the Minister to authorise SYPTE to purchase 
compulsorily any land which SYPTE require for the purposes of their business 
pursuant to section 10(3), Transport Act 1968; 

3. Approving the permanent or long term disposal of land not required by SYPTE for 
operational purposes. 

4. Making appointments to the Board of SYPTE; 

5. Formulating general policies with respect to the availability and convenience of 
public passenger services pursuant to sections 9A(5)- (7), Transport Act 1968; 

6. Ensuring that SYPTE secures the provision of appropriate public passenger 
transport services pursuant to Section 9A (3), Transport Act 1968; 

7. Considering and approving the creation and development of:- 

A. Quality Partnership Schemes or Advanced Quality Partnership Scheme 
pursuant to sections 113(c)-123, Transport Act 2000; 

B. Concessionary Travel Schemes pursuant to sections 93-104, Transport Act 
1985; 

8. Ensuring that SYPTE implements those actions which may be delegated to it from 
time to time for promoting the economic, social and environmental well-being of the 
Combined Area and its residents pursuant to section 99, Local Transport Act 2008; 

9. Approving releases for capital schemes within the agreed capital programme and the 
agreed budget for the scheme concerned (including approving capital payments for 
the purpose of the provision, improvement or development of facilities for public 
passenger transport, pursuant to section 56(2), Transport Act 1968); 

10. Determining variations in charges for transport services or facilities provided by 
SYPTE, pursuant to section 15(2), Transport Act 1968; 

11.  Approving the level of support of local rail services over and above that in the 
baseline franchise specification; 

12. Determining the operation, performance and development of accessible transport 
provision pursuant to sections 106(1) and 106(2), Transport Act 1985; 

13. Monitoring the operation and performance of bus, tram and local rail services and 
influencing accordingly; 

14. Determining issues arising from the rail franchising process. 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



1. Introduction

1.1 This report updates on the current status of the three centrally managed South Yorkshire 
local transport programmes; Integrated Transport Block (ITB), Highways Capital 
Maintenance (HCM) and Sustainable Travel Access Fund (STAF). 

1.2 ITB is a single capital allocation used by the four South Yorkshire local authorities and 
SYPTE (the partners) to deliver high volume, low cost projects and interventions to 
address operational management priorities and developing needs on the local transport 
network.  HCM is paid as a capital grant to BMBC, DMBC and RMBC for the maintenance 
of their respective transport network and assets and STAF is a three-year programme of 
revenue-based activities to support active travel investment and travel mode behaviour 
change in South Yorkshire. 

2. Proposal and justification

2.1 The 2019/20 annual settlement for ITB is £8.428m, this is the fifth year of a six-year 
settlement period.  The annual ITB programme for 2019/20 was approved by the Mayoral 
Combined Authority (MCA) at the January 2019 meeting as part of the South Yorkshire 

Purpose of Report 

To provide Transport Board with an overview of the centrally managed local transport programmes 
currently being delivered through the four South Yorkshire local transport authorities and SYPTE and 
to outline the current key actions which may require more detailed presentation to Transport Board in 
the future.  

Freedom of Information  

Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

‘The paper will be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme’ 

Recommendations 

Board members are asked to: 

• Note the update on how the South Yorkshire local transport programmes are funded and
managed.

• Agree to receive a further report at the next Transport Board on the outcome of the review of
the Integrated Transport Block (ITB).

• Note the need to find alternative funding to continue programmes currently funded by the
Sustainable Travel Access Fund (STAF).

TRANSPORT BOARD 

15th JULY 2019 

CENTRALLY MANAGED LOCAL TRANSPORT PROGRAMMES 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



 

Transport Revenue Budget & Capital Programme 2019/20 report.  In line with the MCA’s 
financial regulations, any proposed variations to the capital programme must be approved 
by the MCA. 
 

 2.2 ITB grant conditions enable the fund to be used flexibly to respond to the evolving needs 
of the local transport network, one of these flexibilities is that the settlement does not have 
to be spent within the financial year.  This has allowed the partners to prioritise other 
funding streams, such as LGF, where there is higher pressure from set deadlines which 
must be met in order to retain the funding levels or meet commitments made. 
 

 2.3 This prioritisation of other sources has contributed to a carry-forward of unspent allocation 
of £2.1m from previous years, this deferral was approved at the June 2019 MCA meeting.  
In addition, SYPTE hold £1.4m of unapplied ITB in their own balance sheet. 
 

 2.4 The ITB is used to focus on the smaller scale interventions which would not meet the 
criteria for funding through any other sources, for example signal and crossing upgrades, 
signing and lining improvements, installation of cycle parking facilities and electric vehicle 
charging points, footway improvements, bus bay relocation and safety improvements at 
road casualty locations.  This is the only discretionary fund which is available to partners 
and so the only option for delivery of these ‘everyday’ actions required to manage the 
efficient operation of the transport network and enable a greater level of responsiveness 
as required. 
 

 2.5 Ahead of submitting the programme to the MCA, each of the partners identified projects to 
address the current needs of their area of the network.  These projects were then 
reviewed to ensure that they contribute to achieving the goals and policies of the new 
Transport Strategy and through this the commitments of the MCA. 
 

 2.6 The total 2019/20 settlement for HCM is £12.219m, this total is higher than had been 
projected when establishing the draft programme (£11.901m) as the settlement letter 
included £318,000 more than expected. The draft programme based on projected 
settlement for this allocation was also included in the capital programme paper approved 
by MCA in January 2019.   The funding is primarily used across five categories of activity; 
highway maintenance, footways, bridges, street lighting and pothole repair, with 
interventions defined and prioritised based on an ongoing network and asset evaluation 
process. 
 

 2.7 The HCM settlements were preceded by a communication from DfT which identified the 
breakdown of annual settlements across the period 2015-2021, this advises the following 
2019/20 allocations for each of the recipient authorities; £3.908m to BMBC, £5.197m to 
DMBC and £3.837m to RMBC.   
 

 2.8 HCM is provided under the same flexible conditions as ITB and so does not have a 
requirement for full spend within the year.  During 2018/19 DfT granted an additional 
£5.571m to the region which did require full in-year spend and so the delivery of HCM 
spend was given a lower priority.  This resulted in a deferral of £1.449m from the 2018/19 
settlement and a total deferral of £3.137m into 2019/20, MCA approval for this was also 
granted in June 2019. 
 

 2.9 Due to the scale of reduction in maintenance funding over the years, the national backlog 
of maintenance works runs to billions of pounds.  This means the scale of work required in 
the region far exceeds the funding available and so networks are continually assessed to 
target activities to the most relevant locations. In recent years DfT have enhanced these 
programmes with additional ad hoc settlements but currently there is no indication that 
there will be any of these this year.  The local authorities also support resolution of 
maintenance issues with additional funding to drive specific local programmes. 
 
 
 

Page 24



 

 2.10 The STAF allocation was awarded by DfT following a competitive bidding process in 
2016.  The programme delivery period covers three years from 2017/18 to 2019/20 with a 
fixed annual allocation of £2.5m. 
  

 2.11 This programme builds on the region’s local sustainable travel programmes which have 
been undertaken since 2011 through a series of successful competitive bids to DfT.  The 
submission consisted of multiple projects grouped under ten investment themes; 
engaging with local businesses, boosting people’s interest and skills in cycling, EcoStars 
fleet recognition scheme, events and promotion of active travel opportunities including 
public transport, in-school projects, training to boost individuals’ independence, bus 
services connecting to specific job opportunities, safer roads led projects, boosting 
people’s interest in walking and the continuation of our Wheels to Work programme. 
 

 2.12 The first two years have been successfully delivered, the full allocation available has been 
utilised and individual project performance has exceeded original projections.  The 
programme’s third and final year is in delivery. 
 

 2.13 By this stage of DfT’s previous sustainable transport award periods they have presented 
opportunities to continue to receive funding through new competitions.  This year however 
there is no successor programme on offer and so DfT funding for active travel revenue 
projects comes to an end in March 2020.  The scarcity of other revenue funding means 
that there is not a local alternative currently available and so the programme and projects 
within will come to an end. 
 

 2.14 This expiration of funding causes a range of concerns given the greater focus on active 
travel following the appointment of Dame Sarah Storey as the Active Travel 
Commissioner. If some of these programmes didn’t continue, this would result in a loss of 
skills and experience from within the region and the need for our capital investment 
ambitions to be supported with an educational programme.  Further, there is a significant 
risk of reputational damage if revenue funding is unavailable to make best use of any 
capital investments. Finding an opportunity to continue work of this nature is therefore 
important. 
 

 2.15 The three programmes are managed on behalf of the partners by the LTP Central Team 
who provide an independent service with no priority towards any individual partner.  
Although they are employed on SYPTE terms and conditions direct line management is 
provided by SCC’s Head of Strategic Transport and Infrastructure as the representative of 
the partners.  Advice on priorities and operational actions for the team is provided by the 
Strategic Transport Group (STG), decision making responsibility is held by SCR/PTE 
Executive Board (EB) who in turn are accountable to Transport Board and the MCA. 
 

 2.16 The LTP Team manage programme delivery and risks for all three funds on an ongoing 
basis including an agreed schedule of quarterly reporting through to STG and EB, the 
2019/20 first quarter update is due for reporting to July’s meetings.   A review of the 
2019/20 ITB programme was commissioned at the EB meeting in May, this will consider 
the suitability of the current programme activity and determine if there is any benefit in, or 
capacity to, re-allocate funding from within the programme.  A report on this review is due 
to be presented to EB’s next meeting in July, following this a further update will be 
provided to Transport Board. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 The revenue activities being delivered through STAF could be terminated when the 
funding expires, and no successor funding sought.  This is not recommended as it would 
negatively impact the benefits delivered through the planned capital investments and 
reduce the region’s existing skill and knowledge base. 
 

 3.2 Transport Board could advise that the ITB review is not reported back however this could 
result in opportunities being missed to inform options for improving the performance of the 

Page 25



 

allocation. 
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
 
ITB review 
The MCA is the accountable body for all three funding streams noted in this report, and is 
therefore subject to review by Internal Audit, the Head of which signs off an annual 
declaration to DfT and undertakes periodic reviews of the South Yorkshire Transport 
Capital Programme. 
 
The latest review of the South Yorkshire Transport Capital Programme by Internal Audit 
resulted in a limited assurance opinion, including 6 recommendations, 4 of which were 
classified as significant. Amongst these was a recommendation that all reports relating to 
ITB and HCM that are presented to South Yorkshire Transport Delivery Group, STG and 
Executive Board should provide for greater transparency and consistency in the level of 
detail provided.  
 
The scope of the ITB review commissioned by EB should therefore take this 
recommendation into account. 
 
STAF 
As noted in the main body of the report, STAF ceases in March 2020. If Transport Board 
members are minded to support further exploration of successor funding, it is 
recommended that they commission a mid-programme review to assess the outputs and 
outcomes of STAF over the first 2 years. The conclusions from this review could then be 
used to inform future financial planning decisions as part of the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy which is scheduled to be presented to the MCA in November 2019.  
 

 4.2 Legal 
 
For the STAF programme each recipient organisation has an SCR Funding Agreement in 
place.  ITB and HCM do not have formal legal agreements however payments are only 
made when SCRCA Finance validation processes have been satisfied. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
 
The programmes referenced are all managed through the local transport programme 
management governance structure which requires the ongoing monitoring and reporting 
of risks through to EB. 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
 
Equality, diversity and social inclusion legislation and duties have been included in 
development of all the projects within the local transport programmes.  
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 Programme delivery is communicated through the schedule of reporting to STG, EB and 
Transport Board, where appropriate issues are reported by exception to the same groups.  
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  Appendix A - Centrally Managed Local Transport Programmes - Summary of Activities 
2019/20 
 
 

 

Page 26



 

REPORT AUTHOR  Alex Linton 
POST  SYLTP Programme Manager 

Officer responsible Mark Lynam  
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.co.uk 
Telephone 0114 2203445 

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Centrally Managed Local Transport Programmes ‐ Summary of Activities 2019/20 (July 4th 2019)

Lead Delivery 

Partner
Project Ref

Assigned LTP Strategic Investment 

Theme
Scheme / Project Name Scheme / Project Summary Description

BMBC B045 Active Travel

BMBC Cycling Package

(incl Safer Routes to Schools and Royston Cycle Route

Identification and delivery of schemes to increase cycling to schools through improvement of safety issues.

Delivery of cycle route improvements between Royston and Town Centre via Bar Lane; continuation of the programme delivered through STEP to increase 

cycle access to Barnsley.

DMBC D036 Active Travel Sustainable Choices

A range of interventions to increase accessibility and enable more people to choose sustainable travel options, works include dropped crossings, footway 

improvements (match for Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) 2a scheme), bus hotspot improvements and installation of additional automatic traffic counters to 

enable monitoring of travel behaviour.

DMBC D039 Active Travel DMBC Cycling Package

Match funding for TCF2a cycling scheme.

A package of cycling parking installations and improvements across the borough, in order to increase accessibility, increase bike security and encourage an 

increase in cycling.  

Responses to business and school requests, to facilitate additional cycle journeys.

RMBC R031 Active Travel Rotherham Accessibility

Further development of TCF 2b schemes.  Range of small scale interventions addressing obstacles to accessibility including Rother Valley to Waverley and 

Sheffield Rd Thrybergh cycle improvements.

RMBC R033 Active Travel Rotherham Smarter Choices Programme

Installation of cycle shelters, stands and pumps in schools and public places to encourage increased cycling.

Installation of electric vehicle charging points to expand the network and contribute to enhancing the viability of electric car use.

RMBC AFW2R Active Travel RMBC Walk 2 Rotherham STAF > LTP works Physical interventions to improve walking routes and facilitate continued increase in active travel.

SCC S094 Active Travel Public Rights Of Way

Delivering the PROW improvement plan as well as maintaining the network to an acceptable standard. Improvement of PROW’s can include:
• Maintaining and improving bridges, gates and stiles
• Signing and way marking
• Improving path surfaces
• Tree management – pruning, clearing and felling to ensure safety
• Vegetation management – cutting and spraying

SCC S096 Active Travel SCC Other Cycling Projects

Delivery of Blackburn Valley previously delayed by issues with Bridleway Creation Order.  

Local contribution/match funding for TCF 2a scheme.

Completion of study as part of match for TCF 2b activities, installation of stands, pumps and counters to facilitate and monitor increased cycling.

RMBC AQ002 Air Quality Air Quality Monitoring

Roadside monitoring of air quality pollutants associated with transport emissions.  The monitoring assesses changes in air pollution concentrations in the 

region, including those as a result of LTP interventions, to reduce emissions.

RMBC AQ003 Air Quality Air Quality Modelling

Roadside modelling of air quality pollutants associated with transport emissions, along with the greenhouse gas carbon dioxide.  South Yorkshire local 

authorities use a shared "Airviro" system for modelling emissions (and how these are dispersed) from road transport, and have developed a very detailed 

transport related emissions related database which covers the entire South Yorkshire area.

SCC S104 Air Quality Other Air Quality Schemes

Continuation of SCC's anti‐idling programme outside schools.  

Installation of ULEV charging points for taxi use.

DMBC D038 Major Schemes Major Scheme Costs

Local contribution to Quality Streets major scheme currently in delivery.

Local contribution to West Moor Link major scheme.

BMBC B043 Network Management BMBC Traffic Management

4x Signal and crossing upgrades to improve management of traffic flow and increase pedestrian accessibility/inclusivity; Park Rd, Cemetery Rd, Doncaster 

Rd, Sheffield Rd

Match funding contribution to TCF 2b submission Laithes Lane / Wakefield Road scheme 

BMBC B046 Network Management BMBC Preliminary Scheme Design Development of TCF 2b A61 scheme, including town centre modelling.

DMBC D037 Network Management DMBC Traffic Management

Multiple interventions to manage issues which impact on movement of traffic around the network, e.g. signing, road markings, bollards, parking control, 

Traffic Regulation Orders etc, to include prevention of inappropriate parking on footways and roundabouts in the Lakeside area which are detrimental to 

residents and negatively affecting the attractiveness of the area to visitors, boroughwide signing and minor traffic management measures.

RMBC R034 Network Management Rotherham Traffic Management

Boroughwide programme of small schemes, e.g. signing and lining improvements.  Anston crossing installation scheme to improve safety risk (derived from 

previous traffic management signalised crossroads scheme), mini roundabout installation and residual costs from A57 major scheme.

RMBC R035 Network Management Scheme development

Contribution to the development of schemes being delivered as part of Rotherham Traffic Management and Safer Roads programmes.  Funding to be re‐

allocated to these programme lines accordingly.

SCC S091 Network Management

SCC Streets Ahead Accessibility Opportunities (small 

schemes)

Small actions taking opportunities presented by delivery of the Streets Ahead programme, specific definition dependent on location and nature of Amey 

works, interventions previously delivered include reducing street clutter, new dropped crossings, handrails and lining.

SCC S095 Network Management SCC Network Management Programme

Package of multiple schemes to address various issues having a detrimental effect on efficient movement around the transport network.    Includes match 

funding for SCRIF funded inner ring road scheme, four HGV weight restriction schemes, additional signage and markings on Coisley Hill, parking 

management through lining and review schemes and improvement to taxi rank at Midland Station to relieve congestion.

Supertram priority and renewal.

SCC S097 Network Management

SCC Streets Ahead Accessibility Enhancements (large 

schemes)

Pedestrian enhancements taking advantage of works being delivered in the area through the Streets Ahead programme, thereby minimising disruption and 

cost.  Four enhancement locations planned.

SYLTP SY004 Programme Management SYLTP Central Team 

Programme management of South Yorkshire's central local transport programmes; Integrated Transport Block, Highways Capital Maintenance and 

Sustainable Travel Access Fund, plus the Safer Roads Partnership re‐investment programme.  Managing allocations to  ensure strategic priorities and grant 

conditions are being met then managing delivery to maximise the benefits derived across the programmes.  

Provision of a scheduled and ad hoc road safety and traffic movement data analysis service to inform activities and business cases across the partnership.

SCC S085 Public Transport Bus Partnership Hotspot Scheme

Interventions to resolve bus hotspots (specific locations where bus journeys are being delayed) including lining variations and re‐location of bays to re‐

establish priority for bus journeys.

SYPTE P003 Public Transport CT Vehicle Replacement Annual rolling programme to replace the Community Transport Vehicle fleet.

SYPTE P033 Public Transport SY Shelter Programme Annual rolling programme of repairs/replacements to the network of public transport shelters.

SYPTE P052 Public Transport Tram Train Contribution to ongoing delivery of the Tram Train programme.

SYPTE P068 Public Transport South Yorkshire Hotspots Minor works to deal with specific locations where bus journeys are being negatively impacted ‐ signals work being delivered to relieve the issues.

SYPTE P073 Public Transport Supertram Rail Replacement Phase II Part of local contribution to programme of rail replacement works on the Supertram network.

SYPTE P078 Public Transport Key Route Bus ‐ Barnsley to Wakefield Phase II Local match contribution to larger works included in TCF 2b submission.

SYPTE P079 Public Transport Smart Ticketing

Delivery of the 2019/20 (year 2 of 5) smart ticketing and integration programme, part of a larger package of works in relation to the smart ticketing 

programme to deliver infrastructure across the county to support the ongoing transition to SMART enabled customer self service ticketing products and 

processes.  Objective to help facilitate an increase in patronage, improve business efficiencies and improve customer accessibility and satisfaction.

SYPTE P100 Public Transport Parkgate Link Road Commencement of on‐site works to improve public transport access and flow around the key Parkgate area.

SYPTE P104 Public Transport Design Work for Future Years

Completion of design for parts of the Quality Street programme in Doncaster (deferral from 18/19).  

Installation of safety camera equipment on Staniforth Rd to address collision issues between traffic and trams.  Dependent on evaluation by South Yorkshire 

Safety Cameras, if SYSC can not support or enforce any installation the allocation could be diverted to provide additional TCF match.

SYPTE P106 Public Transport Rotherham Maltby Corridor

Small allocation deferred from 2018/19.  Scheme is to improve bus journey time and reliability on the Rotherham to Maltby corridor and ultimately increase 

bus patronage through better public transport connectivity

SYPTE P114 Public Transport Electric Bus (Sheffield & Doncaster) Match funding for TCF 2b submission.  Works to support the provision of an electrically powered feeder bus service in Sheffield City Centre

SYPTE P116 Public Transport SCR Mass Transit

Local contribution to larger scheme match funding.  Overall scheme aims to enhance the performance of the Supertram network through addressing areas 

where the network is reaching the end of its economic life.  The enhancements will further encourage modal shift, offering a quality transport network for 

people to access jobs, education, shops, healthcare etc. and linking businesses to employees and customers.

SYPTE P120 Public Transport Rotherham Interchange Refurbishment Costs associated with completion of the Interchange refurbishment large scheme.

SYPTE P122 Public Transport Bus Lane Work (Barnsley, Rotherham & Doncaster)

Minor residual allocation from 18/19 works, now completed without the need for this allocation which will be re‐deployed elsewhere within the 

programme.

SYPTE P125 Public Transport Mayfield Court

Re‐positioning of overhead power supply for Supertram, movement required due to demolition of the building, temporary pole currently in place but longer 

term solution needs to be delivered.

Integrated Transport Block (ITB)

Appendix A

Page 29



SYPTE P126 Public Transport BRT Modelling Completion of BRT North.  Contribution to completed major project.

SYPTE P127 Public Transport

Transforming Cities (including Electric Bus Implementation 

and Parkgate Major)

Match funding for TCF 2b submission.  Definition of activities will come as the bid develops, some of the schemes will require further clarity which will 

influence exactly how this match is delivered.

SYPTE P128 Public Transport

Bus Network Investment (including Implementation of Bus 

Lane Review Outcomes)

List of schemes derived from the Bus Lane Review has been identified, following sign off the specified schemes can be delivered.  All schemes designed to 

increase benefits of bus priority measures.

SYPTE P129 Public Transport Rails Schemes (awaiting decision on AfA Bids) AfA bids not successful so SYPTE currently considering alternative potential station schemes.

SYPTE P130 Public Transport Life Cycle Works (including EV charging points at P&R sites)

Packages of works to improve facilities at public transport sites; improved equipment at car parks (barriers, ticket machines), car park refurbishment, 

Meadowhall car park re‐furbishment and potential installation of EV charging points.

SYPTE WW02 Public Transport Wheels to Work

Annual programme of fleet replacement without which the Wheels to Work programme, assisting people who otherwise would be unable to access the 

work opportunities on offer, wouldn't function.

BMBC B041 Safer Roads Collision Reduction Schemes

Analysis of collision data to identify and deliver minor measures to support reduction in collisions.  Interventions include School Safety Zones and lining, 

signing and lighting works.

BMBC B042 Safer Roads BMBC Safer Roads Programme

Installation of three new footway schemes to reduce casualty risk, deferred from 2018/19 following delays with Statutory Undertakers.  Installation of 

additional Speed Indicator Devices and Vehicle Activated Signs to encourage reduced speeds. 

DMBC D035 Safer Roads DMBC Safer Roads

Works to address requests from communities who have raised casualty issues or to deal with issues relating to the perception of road safety.  Multiple 

intervtions being delivered boroughwide.  Analysis of the annual STATs19 road casualty data used to prioritise schemes on a 'Worst First' basis.

RMBC R030 Safer Roads Rotherham Safer Roads & New Pedestrian Crossings

Accident investigation sites identified and prioritised using the Worst Firs approach followed by works to reduce the risk of further collisions or casualties.  

Developing pipeline of smaller scale works to maintain a continuous programme of road safety improvements.

Installation of new crossing on Morthern Rd.

SCC S075 Safer Roads Sheffield Accident Savings Programme

Schemes to reduce accidents, targeted based on accident data, e.g. junction improvement on Bramhall Lane, pedestrian crossing improvement on 

Langsett/Forbes Rd (alignment with tram track works).  Feasibility of schemes on existing priority list to be followed by delivery of interventions.

Continuation of school keep clear programme.

SCC S087 Safer Roads City Wide 20mph Speed Limit Development

Continuation of SCC's programme to establish zones and areas of 20mph speed limits. 2019/20 works in the city centre, Meadowhead, Wincobank and 

Hurlfield with further feasibility in Hillsborough, Foxhill and Sharrowvale to prepare for delivery in 2020/21.  Potential for some 'quick win' schemes to be 

considered following completion of the Bus Lanes Review.

Page 30



Lead Delivery 

Partner
Project Ref

Assigned LTP Strategic Investment 

Theme
Scheme / Project Name Scheme / Project Summary Description

BMBC BAF001 Active Travel Active Travel Hub ‐ Cycle Hub Barnsley

Central hub at Barnsley Interchange providing various services to enable increased use of active travel options in Barnsley.  Location at the Interchange 

improves the connection with public transport extending the integration of different modes and creating the full end to end journey opportunity.

BMBC BAF002 Active Travel Active Travel Hub ‐ Bike Loan/Hire Short to medium term loan and cycle hire schemes as part of the Hub provision.

BMBC BAF003 Active Travel Active Travel Hub ‐ Dr Bike Free bike maintenance and repair scheme, removing one of the barriers to cycling uptake.

BMBC BAF004 Active Travel Active Travel Hub Expansion

The role of the hub has been expanded from cycling only to also provide information and support to encourage increased walking in the area.  2019/20 

provision expansion includes the Beat The Street programme which motivates and empowers increased walking around the communities.

BMBC BAF005 Active Travel Barnsley Walking Project

Work package to improve the current walking offer for Barnsley residents and visitors by providing low level accessible opportunities for all. Actions target 

inactive groups, for example those with long‐term or chronic conditions such as obesity; type II diabetes; mental health issues.

BMBC BAF006 Active Travel Cycle Training

Provision of cycle training within Barnsley communities/locations to provide the knowledge, skills and confidence for people who currently don't cycle to 

start doing so.

BMBC, DMBC, 

RMBC, SCC CAF001 Active Travel Countywide ‐ Cycling and Walking Events and Promotions

A range of bespoke events across the region to engage with the cycling and walking communities and raise the profile of, and through that interest in, active 

travel an a genuine option for those who currently don't participate.  Events include Barnsley Town Centre Criterium, Doncaster Cycle Festival, events 

around national Air Quality Day, Rotherham Show, free bike hire events, the 10 Day Active Travel Challenge and many other events across the course of the 

year. 

DMBC DAF001 Active Travel Cycle Training A range of training sessions including road skills sessions, cycle confidence sessions, town centre cycling and practice in the park sessions.

DMBC DAF002 Active Travel Doncaster Cycling Package

Free pedal and electric bike loans, free training, regular bike checks and maintenance courses, and cycle safety programmes and campaigns aimed at 

improving confidence and skills to promote safer cycling.  

Active travel hubs and a mobile cycle hub offering bike storage, cycle maintenance and repair services, changing facilities, infrastructure improvements 

aimed at employers, residents, commuters, schools and colleges

DMBC DAF003 Active Travel Dr Bike Free bike maintenance and repair scheme, removing one of the barriers to cycling uptake.

DMBC DAF004 Active Travel Doncaster Borough Cycle Maps Provision of cycle maps ‐ lack of awareness of the best or most appealing routes is often cited as a barrier to cycling for current non‐cyclists.

DMBC CAF002 Active Travel Countywide ‐ Active Travel Officer

Increasing the amount of young people cycling to school and cycling in general through a variety of initiatives; providing and improving cycle storage in the 

schools; aiming to improve the infrastructure for both cyclists and pedestrians around the school; encouraging uptake of cycle training; providing regular 

support with bike maintenance; developing a culture of cycling within the school through a broad range of activities including mass cycling to school events 

and competitions.

RMBC RAF001 Active Travel Rotherham Mobile Cycle Hub

Mobile hub visiting business, education and community sites around the borough providing hire services for electric and pedal bikes, free Dr Bike 

maintenance and repair, cycle training provision and information to empower people to take up cycling or for those already cycling to increase the amount.

RMBC RAF005 Active Travel Walk 2 Rotherham

Support adults and children to walk more by making enduring changes to their travel behaviour through a range of activities and challenges including walk 

once a week in schools, park and stride schemes, and school route audits; workplace challenges such as walking championships; walking advice and walking 

pledges from employees; information stands at public events and community centres; led walks and community street audits.

Safer Roads 

Partnership SRAF001 Active Travel Cycle Safety Activity

This is a programme of activity to promote safety for vulnerable road users, in a bid to prevent increases in casualties (especially cycle and pedestrian 

casualties), as people become more active in their travel habits. This will include advertising campaigns and road safety roadshows to target both riders and 

drivers, in a bid to encourage them to look out for more vulnerable road users. 

SCC SAF001 Active Travel Cycle Hire, Cycle Hubs, Cycleboost, Schools exemplar

Packages of cycle activity to develop interest in cycling then to provide the skills and knowledge required to turn that interest into action.  Packages include 

cycle training for adults and families, cycle hires schemes, Dr Bike maintenance programmes, resources for engaging with communities.  The scheme also 

provides Sheffield Bike Hubs to provide a focal point and integration with other transport modes.

SCC SAF002 Active Travel Independent Travel Training

Travel training and activities for adults with Learning Disabilities, empowering them to travel independently, increasing their social engagement and 

connection with their local communities and expanding the opportunities available to them.

SCC SAF003 Active Travel PROW Improvements, Walking Festival, Walking for Purpose

Walking for Life: a programme of walks and incentives for unemployed people – from walks to open days, training and skill provision to increase their 

options for, and chances of, successful job applications whilst also increasing their activity levels for any other purpose.

Sheffield Walking Festival: an annual week of organised walks to encourage increased walking. 

Public Rights of Way Improvements: re‐surfacing and re‐signing a number of Public Rights of Way, improving the overall walking network for people who are

interested in walking more.

SCC SAF004 Active Travel Cycle Safety and Supertram

Safety programme to increase awareness of the risks associated with the interaction between cyclist and the Supertram network and to provide advice on 

how to mitigate these risks.

SCC CAF005 Active Travel Countywide ‐ Modeshift STARS Schools

A national accreditation scheme: STARS for schools, which promotes and encourages sustainable active travel to schools by rewarding them for setting up 

and delivering modal shift.

The Modeshift STARS online platform is a comprehensive Travel Planning tool that, creates, develops and supports Travel Plans, assists in monitoring and 

evaluation and recognises and rewards excellence for the promotion of sustainable and active travel.

SYLTP CAF009 Active Travel Countywide ‐ Drakewell C2 licence

Collection and data analysis service for all of the automatic traffic counters (including cycle counters).  This provides an ongoing record of activity and travel 

behaviour to inform monitoring of STAF interventions and development of future activities.

SYPTE PAF001 Active Travel

Business to Business Team

(previously Busboost and ITT)

The scheme focuses on ‘travel choice’, chiefly by incorporating direct engagement with employers (across all sectors), their employees and local 

communities to promote and encourage trial, switch and participation in sustainable travel alternatives. The scheme also plays a key role with the 

development of staff engagement and travel plans, thereby encouraging change in travel behaviour.  

All of the activities delivered through the rest of the STAF programme are also promoted through these engagements.

SYPTE PAF002 Active Travel Marketing and Communication

Supports the centrally‐based business and engagement team through delivery of all cross‐programme activity, providing a cohesive identity and joined up 

approach across the region. 

The aims and objectives of this support activity are to raise awareness and interest, as well as participation, in all schemes through the Sheffield City Region. 

This enables customers to easily identify and participate in our funded schemes.

SYPTE CAF007 Active Travel Countywide ‐ Cordon Counts

Annual count programme providing a current and historical record of travel choices into the four regional centres for all modes, through which trends and 

developments can be identified.  The data also contributes to the monitoring of programme impacts.

SYPTE PAF003 Public Transport Wheels to Work

W2W provides a short‐term  loan of a motor scooter to people who would otherwise find it impossible to access employment or training due to unsocial 

hours, geographic isolation, irregular shifts or variable site working. It supports economic growth by increasing people’s job opportunities, giving employers 

a more flexible and wider pool of employees, and also unlocking employment sites for further growth.

SYPTE PAF004 Public Transport Job Connector 

Enhanced bus services to new developments and areas where the existing public transport provision isn't adequate to provide the volume or frequency of 

connection required to achieve the increase in employment the areas offer, particularly within the SCR’s growth areas.

Lead Delivery 

Partner
Project Ref

Assigned LTP Strategic Investment 

Theme
Scheme / Project Name Scheme / Project Summary Description

BMBC ‐ Asset Management Carriageway resurfacing

Ongoing programme of carriageway assessment, prioritisation and re‐surfacing to improve the quality of the network and prevent the negative 

consequences of poor surface, e.g. increased journey time, increased congestion, reduced safety, reduced road user satisfaction.  This programme 

addresses areas where the general standard is deteriorating, often across large areas.  Potholes are picked up within this but there is also a dedicated 

allocation for areas where a pothole may not be part of a wider resurfacing requirement.

BMBC ‐ Asset Management Principal Road Network Ongoing programme of carriageway re‐surfacing dedicated specifically to the principal road network.

BMBC ‐ Asset Management Cycleways & Footways

Programme of assessment and prioritisation of cycleways and footways to ensure usability, encourage continued/increased use, prevent 

injuries/complaints and enhance the overall offering of the network.

BMBC ‐ Asset Management Bridges

Surveying, prioritisation and maintenance or repair of bridges and any other critical structures on the network.  Through this ensuring public safety and 

preventing the potential for considerable disruption to the network resulting from closure.

BMBC ‐ Asset Management Street Lighting Ongoing maintenance and repair programme of the street lighting assets.  

BMBC ‐ Asset Management Pothole / Winter Damage

Dedicated allocation received from DfT to address potholes in the surface of the networks.  This addresses specific localised faults preventing the negative 

consequences of poor surface, e.g. increased journey time, increased congestion, reduced safety, reduced road user satisfaction.

Sustainable Travel Access Fund (STAF)

Highways Capital Maintenance (HCM)

Page 31



DMBC ‐ Asset Management HCM Needs & Incentive

Ongoing programme of carriageway assessment, prioritisation and re‐surfacing to improve the quality of the network and prevent the negative 

consequences of poor surface, e.g. increased journey time, increased congestion, reduced safety, reduced road user satisfaction.  This programme 

addresses areas where the general standard is deteriorating, often across large areas.  Potholes are picked up within this but there is also a dedicated 

allocation for areas where a pothole may not be part of a wider resurfacing requirement.

DMBC ‐ Asset Management Street Lighting Ongoing maintenance and repair programme of the street lighting assets.  

DMBC ‐ Asset Management Bridges

Surveying, prioritisation and maintenance or repair of bridges and any other critical structures on the network.  Through this ensuring public safety and 

preventing the potential for considerable disruption to the network resulting from closure.

DMBC ‐ Asset Management Pothole / Winter Damage

Dedicated allocation received from DfT to address potholes in the surface of the networks.  This addresses specific localised faults preventing the negative 

consequences of poor surface, e.g. increased journey time, increased congestion, reduced safety, reduced road user satisfaction.

RMBC ‐ Asset Management HCM ‐ Highway Repair Programme 2019/20

Ongoing programme of carriageway assessment, prioritisation and re‐surfacing to improve the quality of the network and prevent the negative 

consequences of poor surface, e.g. increased journey time, increased congestion, reduced safety, reduced road user satisfaction.  This programme 

addresses areas where the general standard is deteriorating, often across large areas.  Potholes are picked up within this but there is also a dedicated 

allocation for areas where a pothole may not be part of a wider resurfacing requirement.

RMBC ‐ Asset Management HCM ‐ Street Lighting Ongoing maintenance and repair programme of the street lighting assets.  

RMBC ‐ Asset Management HCM Bridge Maintenance

Surveying, prioritisation and maintenance or repair of bridges and any other critical structures on the network.  Through this ensuring public safety and 

preventing the potential for considerable disruption to the network resulting from closure.

RMBC ‐ Asset Management Pothole / Winter Damage

Dedicated allocation received from DfT to address potholes in the surface of the networks.  This addresses specific localised faults preventing the negative 

consequences of poor surface, e.g. increased journey time, increased congestion, reduced safety, reduced road user satisfaction.

Page 32



1. Introduction

1.1 This report provides the Transport Board with an overview of the South Yorkshire Bus 

Review and an update on progress. Specifically, the paper provides information on the 

approach to the review including evidence collation and key lines of enquiry, and an 

indicative timeline for the review. 

2. Proposal and justification

2.1 In England, bus services were deregulated 1986 following the introduction of the 1985 

Transport Act. Over the last 25 years, annual bus journeys per person (in cities outside 

London) have fallen by 40%. This trend of declining patronage is replicated in South 

Yorkshire, although 82% of all public transport journeys in South Yorkshire are still made 

by bus.   

2.2 Within South Yorkshire, bus services are operated commercially under bus partnership 

arrangements for each of the four local authority areas. These arrangements have been 

introduced progressively between 2012 and 2017.  The partnership model means decisions 

are taken in consultation with the operators, SYPTE and Local Authorities, as well as the 

public where appropriate. This does not extend to decisions on setting fares and operators 

are required to retain their own range of products.  

Purpose of Report 

This report provides an update to the Transport Board on the progress in undertaking the Mayoral Bus 
Review, led by Clive Betts MP. 

Freedom of Information 

Thematic Board Papers and any appendices will be made available under the Combined Authority 
Publication Scheme. This scheme commits the Authority to make information about how decisions are 
made available to the public as part of its normal business activities. 

Recommendations 

TRANSPORT BOARD 

19th JULY 2019  

UPDATE ON THE BUS REVIEW 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



 

  
2.3 In 2017, the Government introduced the Bus Services Act giving Mayoral Combined 

Authorities the choice to access bus devolution powers, enter into Enhanced Partnerships 

or upgrade existing statutory quality partnerships to advanced quality partnerships.  

  
2.4 

 

There is a need to identify and understand the underlying reasons for declining bus 

patronage in our region, to then identify the appropriate models of bus operation that can 

help the City Region achieve its wider transport aspirations.  As part of his manifesto and 

Vision for Transport, Mayor Dan Jarvis has asked Clive Betts MP to chair an independent 

commission reviewing the provision of bus services across South Yorkshire with a view to 

bringing forward evidenced, practical, ambitious recommendations for improvements to 

encourage patronage, improve viability and ensure the bus system is fit for the 21st 

century. 

  
2.5 

 

The Chair has personally appointed a balanced panel of commissioners to support him in 

carrying out the review and who are contributing a range of thinking and insight from a 

variety of perspectives. Stakeholders, ranging from bus operators to user groups, are 

being engaged but deliberately not directly represented on the panel. The commissioners 

appointed by the Chair to sit on the panel are: 

 

• Kristine Beuret – Director of Social Research Associates 

• Stephen Joseph – former CEO of Campaign for Better Transport  

• Martin Mayer – former bus driver and Unite union representative  

• Peter Kennan – private sector representative on the LEP board (transport lead)  

• Lily Currie – Sheffield Hallam University student, studying Environmental Studies  

  
2.6 The panel have committed to meet monthly and its role is to oversee development of the 

evidence base, conduct fieldwork visits and interview stakeholders. The following thematic 

areas will be discussed by the panel at forthcoming meetings:  

• Lessons learned from other areas 

• Congestion, green journeys and air quality  

• Commercial operation of a bus system fit for the 21st Century 

  
2.7 The panel is following a similar approach to Select Committee inquiries in respect of 

formally invite key stakeholders (including local authorities, SYPTE and the bus operators) 

to submit written evidence ahead of oral public evidence sessions over the Summer 

where stakeholders will be questioned in more detail. 

  
2.8 Terms of Reference for the review have been agreed between the Mayor, the Chair and 

the panel of commissioners (see Appendix A) and the panel have agreed the following 

key lines of enquiry: 

• Trends in bus use, factors contributing to these trends how to increase bus 

patronage - generally as well as in relation to different demographic groups 

including young people, the elderly, minority ethnic groups; key workers; those on 

low incomes, those with mobility issues;  

• How to improve provision for potentially isolated residents and communities; 

• How to improve ‘quality’ of services with an emphasis on the bus user experience; 

• The relationship between the bus system and other modes of transport and travel 

such as the tram network and active travel;   

Page 34



 

• The implementation of bus priority measures by local leaders in South Yorkshire;    

• The environmental impact that buses can have on congestion, pollution and air 

quality;   

• The commercial operation of the bus sector including the responsibilities of bus 

operators, strategic planning and regulatory matters; 

• Adequacy of funding and best approaches to securing future investment in the 

sector and ensuring sustainability; and  

• What can be learnt from other towns, cities and/or city regions about any of the 

review’s key lines of enquiry.  

The review will take a strategic long-term perspective of services but is unlikely to make 

recommendations on individual routes. 

  
2.9 The review includes a public call for evidence whereby existing and non-bus users and 

community groups have been invited to submit their views about existing bus service 

provision and/or improvements that they would like to be made. A survey, which was 

published online (on the SCR website) in May, has so far received over 2500 responses 

from individuals and representative groups. Public focus groups will also be held by 

councillors, local authorities and the Chambers of Commerce; with a focus on eliciting the 

views of those people who don’t currently use bus transport. Additionally, the Review’s 

Secretariat is working with local authorities to make use of existing public consultation 

mechanisms so as not to duplicate efforts and make it easier for the public to get involved. 

  
2.10 

 

The indicative timeline for the review is as follows: 

 

• June – October: evidence base development will take place– including procurement 

of external organisation to undertake research and analysis  

• June – September: stakeholder engagement including public call for evidence, 

fieldwork, focus groups and formal evidence sessions  

• September & October: analysis and prioritisation of findings including sharing 

interim findings with the Mayor  

• November – January: Draft report including recommendations  

• January 2020: submit final report to the Mayor and Combined Authority  

  

3. Implications 
 

 3.1 Financial 
There are no direct financial implications from this paper. 
  

 3.2 Legal 
There are no direct legal implications from this paper, although the recommendations of 
the review will need to be considered within the context of the powers afforded to the 
Mayor under the 2017 Bus Services Act.  
 

 3.3 Risk Management 
There is a risk that the public and bus operators perceive the review as having a pre-
determined outcome. This is addressed as part of the communications and stakeholder 
engagement campaigns, and a response it outlined in the frequently asked questions 
document (Annex B).  
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion 
An equality impact assessment will be completed as part of the options analysis that will 
inform the recommendations made by the commission. The evidence base will also 

Page 35



 

consider the needs of minority passenger groups such as the elderly or the economic 
disadvantaged.  
 

5. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 5.1  Annex A: Review Terms of Reference  
Annex B: Frequently Asked Questions  
 
 

 
REPORT AUTHOR  Jo Kaczmarek 
POST  Manifesto Policy Manager & Bus Review Secretariat  

Officer responsible Mark Lynam  
Organisation Sheffield City Region MCA 

Email Mark.Lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone  

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 

 
  

Page 36

mailto:Mark.Lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


Annex A 

Terms of Reference 

1. Introduction 

The Sheffield City Region Mayor (Dan Jarvis) has launched a time limited commission to 
examine all aspects of South Yorkshire’s bus transport system and services with a view to 
identifying and recommending improvements that will benefit users as well as supporting the 
broader sustainability of the bus transport sector.  

2. Purpose  

The Bus Review is being undertaken to provide the Mayor with independent assessment of:  

 The current condition of the commercial bus and community transport sector in South 

Yorkshire, including the reasons for the decline in both registered bus services and bus 

passenger numbers;  

 The social, environmental and economic impacts of this decline in bus services and 

passenger numbers; and  

 The steps which should be taken to ensure commercial bus and community transport 

services meet the needs of South Yorkshire residents.  

Specific key lines of enquiry (KLEs) flowing from the above will be determined by the Chair 
and the panel of commissioners; in addition to the Mayor’s transport ambition as articled in 
the SCR Vision for Transport and related Transport Strategy.  The Review will broadly 
consider: 

 Trends in bus use, factors contributing to these trends how to increase bus patronage 

- generally as well as in relation to different demographic groups including young 

people, the elderly, minority ethnic groups; key workers; those on low incomes, those 

with mobility issues;  

 How to improve provision for potentially isolated residents and communities; 

 How to improve ‘quality’ of services with an emphasis on the bus user experience; 

 The relationship between the bus system and other modes of transport and travel such 

as the tram network and active travel;   

 The implementation of bus priority measures by local leaders in South Yorkshire;    

 The environmental impact that buses can have on congestion, pollution and air quality;   

 The commercial operation of the bus sector including the responsibilities of bus 

operators, strategic planning and regulatory matters; 

 Adequacy of funding and best approaches to securing future investment in the sector 

and ensuring sustainability; and  

 What can be learnt from other towns, cities and/or city regions about any of the review’s 

key lines of enquiry. 

 
3. The Review Panel: Chair and Commissioners 

The Review will be chaired by Clive Betts MP. The Chair will lead the work of the Review to 

ensure that it independently considers all the evidence available to fulfil its purpose. 

The Chair will be supported by a small (>6) panel of independent commissioners.  The 

appointment of these commissioners will be determined by the Chair taking into consideration 

advice from SCR MCA officers (who will provide a Secretariat function – see below). 

Page 37



The ambition will be to appoint a ‘balanced panel’ comprising a range of independent experts 

and informed user voices and having regard to diversity criteria.  

Stakeholder groups, such as transport operators, will not be directly represented on the 
Commission – though their informed views will be sought and given full consideration in 
evidence gathering. Officials will support the Chair throughout the appointments process.  

 

4. Timescales and Meeting Frequency  

The Chair and the panel will meet on a monthly basis as a minimum and will hold meetings 
with external stakeholders. They will decide how they wish to gather evidence for the review 
including the balance of meetings held in private and in public.  

Interim findings will be presented to the Mayor for discussion in Autumn 2019 with a final report 
including recommendations submitted by early 2020 at the latest.  A final report will be 
published at the end of the full term of the inquiry.  

 

5. Review outputs  

The output of the Review should be a report that: 

 Summarises the evidence available in relation to the three areas set out in section 1.  

 Draws conclusions on what this evidence is saying in terms of the performance of the bus 

network. 

 Makes recommendations to the Mayor on the actions he should take to address this issue.   

 
6. Secretariat Support  

The Review will be supported by a small secretariat function provided by the Sheffield City 
Region Executive. Working with the Chair, the function will be responsible for: 

 Organising meetings of the Commission and providing secretariat support; 

 Supporting evidence gathering activities, including any call for evidence; 

 Supporting stakeholder engagement processes in concert with the Chair and Panel; and  

 Bringing together the interim report and report of the Review outcomes.  

Subject to discussion with the Chair, the work of the Secretariat may be supplemented with 
specialist technical analysis. This will help bring together the evidence received and support 
the panel in its interpretation and the development of conclusions.   

A budget (to be determined) will be made available for the Review to meet the costs of 
dedicated secretariat support, additional specialist analytical support, and external travel and 
events.   

  

Page 38



 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Annex B 

Frequently Asked Questions  

Q: Why is a review of bus services needed?  

A: Outside of London, annual bus journeys in cities have fallen per person by 40% over the last 25 years. 
The trend of declining patronage is replicated in South Yorkshire. There is a need to identify and 
understand the underlying bus patronage in the region while at the same time identify the appropriate 
models of bus operation that can help achieve wider transport aspirations.  

Q: How does this relate to the Mayor’s Vision for Transport?  

A: In December 2018 Mayor Dan Jarvis launched a new transport vision that aims to build a transport 
system that works for everyone. At the heart of the vision are active travel, improved public transport and 
reduced journey times. 82% of all public transport journeys in South Yorkshire are undertaken by bus and 
therefore improvements to bus services identified through this review are a key focus for improved public 
transport and ensure the whole system is fit for the 21st century.  

Q: Who is the independent chair of the bus review?  

A: The Mayor (Dan Jarvis) has asked Clive Betts to independently chair the review in order to fully examine 
all aspects of bus services in South Yorkshire. Clive is a Member of Parliament for Sheffield South East 
and is also chair of the Housing, Community and Local Government Select Committee.  

Q: Why has an independent chair been appointed to oversee the bus review?  

A: The Mayor (Dan Jarvis) has asked Clive Betts to independently chair the review so that he can 
impartially examine all aspects of bus services in South Yorkshire. While the manifesto stated that the 
Mayor “can and will consider using regulatory powers to improve bus services” there is a need to consider 
all options before deciding on whether to exercise these powers. An independent chair is well-placed to 
put forward evidence and recommendations to the Mayor for him to decide what improvements are 
needed.  

Q: When will the review be finished?  

A: It is anticipated that a report will be submitted to the Mayor in January 2020  

Q: What issues will be considered as part of the review?  

A: The review will examine a wide number of issues concerning bus services across South Yorkshire. 
They include but are not limited to:   

 Current passenger and usage trends  

 How to increase passenger numbers – particularly in relation to different demographic groups such 

as the elderly, minority ethnic groups, those with mobility issues and those on low incomes 

 What the access, quality, frequency and connectivity challenges people face  

 How to improve connectivity within the region  

 How improved services can be delivered and what resources are required to implement them  

 What we can learn from other areas of the country and about wider ways of incentivising bus travel  

Page 41



 

Q: How can I submit evidence to the review? How can I tell you what I think?  

A: The review will include a call for evidence whereby members of the public, bus operators, community 
and transport interest groups and any other organisations will be able to submit evidence on the issues 
that are being examined. A survey was published on the Sheffield City Region website. In the meantime, 
people can use the SY Bus Review email address: SYBusReview@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  

Q: Is this a foregone conclusion? Will the Mayor be using powers under the Bus Services Act 2017 
to take over regulation of the buses in South Yorkshire?  

A: The Mayor recognises the importance of looking at regulation of bus services and the role which it can 
play. However, before going down the regulatory route we must comprehensively understand the nature 
of the problems faced by bus users, prospective users and operators alike and explore all options for 
improvement.  

Q: What is bus service franchising? 

A: The Bus Services Act 2017 gives Mayoral Combined Authorities (MCA) the power to enact bus 
franchising. Franchising allows MCAs to determine the details of the bus services that needed to be 
provided – including where they run, when they run and the standards of the vehicles. The Bus Services 
Act 2017 also gave MCAs the power to introduce ticketing schemes whereby an MCA can specify the 
establishment of multi-operator and multi-modal ticketing and the technologies to be accepted on services.  

Q: Why is the review just of bus services across South Yorkshire?  

A: The Sheffield City Region Combined Authority (SCR CA) is made up of four local authority constituent 
members: Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield. These four local authorities make up the South 
Yorkshire region.  The SCR CA can exercise powers to make decisions about transport, economic 
development and regeneration. There are five local authorities represented on the combined authority as 
non-constituent members: Chesterfield, North East Derbyshire, Derbyshire Dales, Bassetlaw and 
Bolsover. The SCR CA can not exercise powers in relation to the non-constituent members.   

Q: Will the review hold bus operators to account for improvement or changes to specific services?  

A: The review will examine a broad range of issues including passenger trends, challenges people face 
and ways to increase patronage numbers. Evidence will be gathered in several ways including a call for 
evidence. Public and interest groups may wish to submit specific information as part of the call for evidence 
about bus routes or services in South Yorkshire that could be improved. The chair of the review will 
consider all the evidence received in totality and use it to make recommendations about how to improve 
bus services across South Yorkshire. These may relate to specific services and routes or systemic 
improvements.     

 
 

 

Page 42

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/
mailto:SYBusReview@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


1. Introduction

1.1 The Transport Act and Local Transport Act 2008 places a statutory obligation on the SCR
Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) to produce a Local Transport Plan.  The previous 
‘SCR Transport Strategy 2011 – 2026’ was written before the Combined Authority (CA) 
and Transport for the North (TfN) existed, therefore on the 30th January 2017, the CA 
agreed to undertake a refresh of the Strategy in order to bring it up to date. 

1.2 Following 18 months of work, which included a public consultation, the new SCR Transport 
Strategy was adopted at the 28th January 2019 MCA meeting, with the final version now 
available on the SCR website.   

1.3 Now that the Transport Strategy has been adopted, work has begun on developing the 
future work programmes to take forward the interventions identified within the Transport 
Strategy.  This report provides an update on the progress in developing these plans and 
the intended timescale for completion.  

2. Proposal and justification

2.1 Following the adoption of the Transport Strategy, SCR is working through the future work
programmes to develop a pipeline of interventions in response to the vision, goals and 
policies described in the document. This is because whilst the Strategy sets out ‘what’ we 
want to achieve, it doesn’t identify ‘how’ it will be delivered. The Implementation Plans will 
provide this scheme level detail which will provide a comprehensive work programme for 
SCR and local authority partners over the next few years. 

2.2 The Strategy identifies four key programmes of work to be organised around rail, active 
travel, roads and the strategic transit network, with additional cross cutting work 
programmes around future mobility and air quality. There will be a degree of overlap 

Purpose of Report 

This report provides an update on the Sheffield City Region (SCR) Transport Strategy and the 
development of the associated Implementation Plans.  

Freedom of Information  

This paper will be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme 

Recommendations 

TRANSPORT THEMATIC BOARD 

19th July 2019

TRANSPORT STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



 

between the work programmes as illustrated in the following diagram, some of which the 
SCR will lead, some of which we will contribute to and some of which we will seek to 
influence. 
 

 
 
 

 2.3 Each of the plans will seek to follow a similar format to provide consistency and to enable 
clear links to be drawn to the goals and policies of the Transport Strategy.  The first of the 
implementation plans to be developed is the Integrated Rail Plan (IRP), which shows the 
links between HS2, Northern Powerhouse Rail (NPR), SCR and local rail.  The plan sets 
out the top ten challenges with the existing rail network in the SCR and the future 
opportunities and needs.  From these challenges and opportunities, a series of objectives 
have been set along with interventions for delivery that are grouped into the following 
timeframes; 
 
• Interventions that are either committed for delivery, or which we need to see  

delivered, in the next five years  
• Interventions for which we aim to complete business cases in the next five years,  

with the aim of these interventions being delivered from the mid-2020s onwards 
• Interventions for which we will do more investigation work and develop options for,  

in the next five years, such that these interventions could be delivered from the late 
2020s onwards. 
 

These interventions have been mapped out to clearly show the location of each of the 
proposed interventions for delivery, an approach that will be replicated within each of the 
plans. The intention is that once all of the Implementation Plans are in place, the 
combination of the schemes categorised in this way, will form an overall ‘Transport 
Delivery Programme’ which the Transport Board will oversee. 
 

 2.4 Work has also begun drafting the Roads Implementation Plan. This plan follows a similar 
format to the IRP and discussions have begun with local authority leads to agree the 
objectives for the document.  It is proposed that within the Roads Plan, the Key Route 
Network will be finalised, and the scope of that network agreed.  Stakeholder engagement 
will be key in developing this document and partners have been asked to add detail 
regarding the local challenges and opportunities they are aware of, relating to the highway 

Page 44



 

they are responsible for.  Once the challenges and objectives have been finalised, work 
can commence on the development of the intervention mapping.  
 

 2.5 Now the SCR has appointed an Active Travel Commissioner and Active Travel Project 
Director, work has started on the associated Implementation Plan.  This plan will follow the 
same format as outlined above, however this document will also build on the Local Cycling 
and Walking Implementation Plan (LCWIP) work.  The LCWIP follows a process outlined 
by DfT to calculate where investment should be prioritised in the future for walking and 
cycling but as this process was funded by DfT, only two routes were selected per authority 
area. The development of this Active Travel Implementation Plan will see a wider network 
of routes considered with the outputs being reported back to DfT by November 30 2019, in 
line with the LCWIP support contract end date.  
 

 2.6 Finally, discussions have begun with partners in South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 
Executive (SYPTE) regarding the approach to the Bus Implementation Plan.  Having 
considered the work taking place on the Bus Review, it is felt that the Bus Implementation 
Plan can be developed in parallel.  Discussions are in the early stages and SCR will 
continue to work with SYPTE on the development of this plan. Further details will be 
brought back to a subsequent Transport Board for discussion and agreement.  
 

 2.7 Alongside the four modal Implementation Plans, there are two cross cutting issues around 
air quality and future mobility. As the City Region has not previously explored the issue of 
future mobility, further work is required to frame our thinking and approach. SCR is 
currently commissioned a ‘think piece’ to inform our future approach, and is seeking 
support to interpret the principles outlined in the Government’s Future of Urban Mobility 
Strategy and apply them to the City Region.  This piece of work will also consider how the 
key innovations made in urban mobility can be harnessed to deliver SCR’s Transport 
Strategy, Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) and will seek 
to identify where SCR is uniquely placed to contribute to this agenda.  On a similar basis, 
SCR are seeking support to develop an air quality work programme.  Air quality is 
monitored locally and reported on by our Local Authority partners.  Consequently, SCR 
would like to understand how value can be added by taking a strategic approach.  
The outputs from these commissions are expected in the autumn. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 Following the adoption of the Transport Strategy in January 2019, there is a requirement to 
outline how the strategic ambitions of that document can be translated into a workplan for 
delivery.  Consideration was given to alternative ways in which to develop such a 
programme, including having a single combined Implementation Plan. However, it was felt 
that’s this would result in a failure to adequately consider each of the modal issues 
thoroughly, or given enough space to reflect on the impact of the two cross cutting topics. 
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
 
There are no direct financial implications as a result of producing the Implementation 
Plans. However, once they are adopted consideration will need to be given to how the 
business cases for the interventions identified will be funded by SCR or individual partners. 
 

 4.2 Legal 
Section108 of the transport Act 2000 requires the MCA to develop policies for the 
promotion and encouragement of safe, integrated, efficient and economic transport to, 
from and within their area, and carry out their functions so as to implement those policies.  
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
Individual projects will be subject to separate bespoke risk assessments during their 
development and implementation. 

Page 45



 

 
 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken as part of the Integrated 
Assessment for the refreshed Transport Strategy. To ensure that the consultation process 
on the Transport Strategy was inclusive, the Transport Strategy documents were available 
in electronic, printed and accessible formats.  Members of the public and transport users of 
all ages and socioeconomic groups were encouraged to view and comment on the draft 
Transport Strategy through a variety of ways.   
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 As the MCA endorses each Implementation Plan, further work will be undertaken to 
communicate the key elements to communities across the region.  
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  None. 
 
 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR   
POST   

Officer responsible Mark Lynam  
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone 0114 2203445 

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 

 
 

Page 46

mailto:mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


1. Introduction

1.1 Since 2018, the Sheffield City Region (SCR) has been preparing an HS2 Growth Strategy
that was to be submitted to the Department for Transport (DfT) setting out what benefits the 
arrival of HS2 and Northern Powerhouse Rail (NPR) in the SCR would be, as well as 
outlining what additional infrastructure may be needed. However, in March 2019, it was 
agreed that the work would be more effectively presented in the form of an Integrated Rail 
Plan (IRP) for the SCR. It was also agreed that it would also serve as the associated rail 
implementation plan for the Transport Strategy. 

1.2 This report sets out the process that has been followed in producing the IRP and seeks 
endorsement of the Plan and next steps. 

2. Proposal and justification

2.1 The evidence base underpinning the original work on the HS2 Growth Strategy was
completed in October 2018 and encompassed a number of work packages to enable and 
support the development and delivery of an HS2 Growth Strategy for the City Region. 

2.2 Alongside this work, the Strategic Outline Business Case (SOBC) for NPR was submitted 
to Government in February 2019 and significant funding has been released to Transport 
for the North (TfN) by the DfT to take forward the next stage of design work, aimed at  
developing a single concept for each corridor by early 2020. However, HS2 and NPR are 
not isolated infrastructure projects flowing through the SCR. They are intrinsically linked. 

Purpose of Report 

This report provides an update on the progress in developing an Integrated Rail Plan for the City 
Region.  

Thematic Priority 

Secure investment in infrastructure where it will do most to support growth. 

Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

The paper will be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme  

Recommendations 

That members: 

• Note the process for adopting the Integrated Rail Plan at the MCA.

TRANSPORT BOARD 

19th July 2019 

SHEFFIELD CITY REGION INTEGRATED RAIL PLAN 

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



 

As such they should be used as a catalyst to deliver our wider goals within the recently 
adopted Transport Strategy.  
 

 2.3 The Strategy recognises that the City Region needs a properly planned high-speed 
network that is well connected to the conventional network, serving a wider spread of 
towns and cities. Whilst the benefits of national investment in HS2 and NPR for example, 
should be maximised, there needs to be ongoing, complementary investment in the local 
and regional network. Yet there is no current single programme or funding opportunity to 
deliver what is needed on our rail network, hence the need for an Integrated Rail Plan.  
 

 2.4 The Integrated Rail Plan will serve as the implementation plan for rail within the SCR 
Transport Strategy as well as articulate the outcomes originally planned for inclusion in an 
HS2 Growth Strategy. In this way, the SCR is being much more pro-active in setting out 
what investment is needed on our rail network to realise the Mayor’s Vision and to help 
deliver a transport system that works for everyone. This is because the real benefit from 
investment in HS2 and NPR in the City Region, will not come directly from those projects, 
but from the impact and investment in the wider rail and transport network. 
 

 2.5 Through the Integrated Rail Plan for the City Region, we are aiming to set out what we 
need from our rail network to achieve the goals, policies and outcomes set out in the 
Transport Strategy and the Mayor’s Vision for Transport. HS2 and NPR will help deliver 
the inter-regional connections to major centres, whilst our ambitious active travel 
programme will help achieve the necessary local connections to/from neighbourhoods, 
helping to deliver our aspirational journey time targets. The Integrated Rail Plan sets out 
what is needed to achieve the regional hub to regional hub connections, positioning HS2 
and NPR within a coherent strategy for our rail network, in order to reap the full benefits of 
this investment. 
 

 2.6 The final version of the Integrated Rail Plan will include the following: 
 

• A description of the existing challenges on the SCR’s rail network 

• The latest position with HS2 and NPR and the opportunities this presents 

• A description of the interventions that the SCR believes is needed on its rail 
network over the next 15 years 

• How these interventions will help deliver local growth ambitions; 

• How we will measure the success of the Plan against the goals and policies of the 
Transport Strategy. 

 
The Plan was developed through close working with all the South Yorkshire Local 
Authorities alongside the Department for Transport (DfT), the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), HS2 Ltd, Transport for the North (TfN) and 
Chesterfield Borough Council. It has been endorsed by the Leaders of the South Yorkshire 
Local Authorities for publication. 
 

 2.8 More specifically, the Plan identifies several principal components for the SCR’s future rail 
network: 
 

• Connecting HS2 trains from the centre of Sheffield to Leeds and the North East of 
England. 

• Improving the speed and frequency of trains from the Sheffield City Region to 
Greater Manchester and Leeds. 

• A new station in the Dearne Valley that has the potential to be served by HS2 and 
NPR services. 

• Intercity rail services direct into the town centres of Barnsley and Rotherham. 

• Providing a direct national rail connection to Doncaster Sheffield Airport. 

• Delivery of major improvements at Sheffield Midland station. 

• Continued investment in upgrading the East Coast Main Line and the Midland 
Mainline. 

Page 48



• Delivering a permanent tram-train service between Sheffield and Rotherham and
future proofing the existing Supertram network.

• Extending the tram-train network into the Dearne Valley, Doncaster and Doncaster
Sheffield Airport.

• A new rail station serving the Advanced Manufacturing Innovation District.

• A rolling programme of improvements at our network of local stations.

• The opening up of low usage or closed rail lines to new passenger and freight
services across the SCR.

2.9 The next steps after approval by the MCA, will be to take forward the necessary 
development work on all these components to ensure timely delivery as set out within the 
Plan itself. In parallel with this plan, work has also started on the development of the 
parallel implementation plans for road and active travel. The public transport 
implementation plan will also sit alongside these and follow a similar format to the IRP. 
The cumulative list of interventions from all of these plans will form an overall Transport 
Programme, which will provide the focus of the MCA’s work on transport for the 
forthcoming years. 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches

3.1 Option 1: Publish an HS2 Growth Strategy as planned
This would draw together all of the evidence developed to date but would miss the 
opportunity to make the case for the required wider investment required in the SCR rail 
network. 

3.2 Option 2: Publish a separate Rail Implementation Plan 
This would be to develop the agreed implementation plan but would not have a clear link 
to HS2 and NPR, projects which will have a profound influence on the SCR’s future 
transport network and will play an important role in delivering the aspirational journey times 
set out in the Mayor’s Vision. This would result in a piecemeal approach which would 
result in a lack of integration in our thinking. 

4. Implications

4.1 Financial
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work on the HS2 
Growth Strategy evidence base has been funded from a previously awarded grant of 
£1.25m from Government. 

4.2 Legal 
Section108 of the transport Act 2000 requires the MCA to develop policies for the 
promotion and encouragement of safe, integrated, efficient and economic transport to, 
from and within their area, and carry out their functions so as to implement those policies. 

4.3 Risk Management 
Individual projects will be subject to separate bespoke risk assessments during their 
development and implementation. 

4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion 
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken as part of the Integrated 
Assessment for the refreshed Transport Strategy. To ensure that the consultation process 

on the Transport Strategy was inclusive, the Transport Strategy documents were available 
in electronic, printed and accessible formats.  Members of the public and transport users of 
all ages and socioeconomic groups were encouraged to view and comment on the draft 
Transport Strategy through a variety of ways.   

Page 49



5.1 Proactive communication is planned around the launch of the Integrated Rail Plan, in 
partnership with stakeholders including local authorities, Transport for the North, 
Doncaster Sheffield Airport, HS2 Ltd and the Department for Transport. 

6. Appendices/Annexes

6.1  N/A

Report Author Mark Lynam 
Post Director of Transport, Infrastructure and Housing 

Officer responsible Mark Lynam 
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email Mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone 0114 2203445 

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 

Other sources and references: 

5. Communications

Page 50

mailto:Mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


1. Introduction

1.1 In May 2018, Mayor Dan Jarvis was elected with a manifesto commitment to promote more
cycling and walking within the City Region. This commitment was captured in the Mayor’s 
Vision for Transport, adopted by the MCA in December 2018. This commitment is consistent 
with the Transport Strategy which seeks to increase the number of people walking and 
cycling by over 350%, as part of a greater move towards modal shift. 

1.2 A key part of the Mayor’s manifesto commitment was to appoint an Active Travel 
Commissioner. Dame Sarah Storey was appointed to this role in April 2019 to lead the 
active travel programme. This report provides an update on progress to date and asks the 
Board to consider the adoption of a set of minimum standards for the development of future 
active travel infrastructure.  

2. Proposal and justification

2.1 Following the appointment of Dame Sarah Storey as Active Travel Commissioner, Pete
Zanzottera was appointed to lead the programme team. The team also includes two 
secondments until March 2020. Ruth Speare is seconded for 2 days a week to extend her 
work as a public health registrar in Barnsley, to the whole region helping the active travel 
plan to direct the work and evidence the approach.  Living Streets have seconded Jim Shaw 
to engage an additional 20 schools in their Walk to School programme (5 in each of the 
South Yorkshire partner authorities).  

Purpose of Report 

This report provides an update for Transport Board members on the work of the Active Travel 
Programme, led by Dame Sarah Storey. 

Freedom of Information 

Thematic Board Papers and any appendices will be made available under the Combined Authority 
Publication Scheme. This scheme commits the Authority to make information about how decisions are 
made available to the public as part of its normal business activities. 

Recommendations 

Board members are asked to: 

• Note the progress made in developing the active travel programme, and the appointed of a
Commissioner and the active travel team.

• Endorse the creation of an Active Travel Advisory Board and the associated Terms of
Reference.

• Agree to the creation of a set of minimum standards for active travel infrastructure.

TRANSPORT BOARD 

19th July 2019 

Active Travel Update 

Page 51

Agenda Item 10



 

 2.2 Active Travel effectively means walking and cycling, but also includes running, wheelchair 
use, 3 and 4 wheeled cycles and scooting, both on and off the public highways. It includes 
all journey purposes (utility and leisure trips). At the heart of the Active Travel Project are 4 
pledges that the Commissioner has made:  
 

1. Being led by our communities 
2. Enabling cycling and walking rather than encouraging it 
3. Infrastructure will meet minimum standards 
4. Infrastructure will be fully accessible 

 
As part of joined up lobbying with other mayors and commissioners across the UK, Mayor 
Dan Jarvis and Dame Sarah Storey have already written to the Secretary of State for 
Transport with ‘five asks’, the first of which is a continuous funding stream for active travel to 
provide long term certainty over infrastructure funding.  
 

 2.3 The intention is that these pledges will form the basis of an Active Travel Plan for the City 
Region, which will also be the Implementation Plan for this strand of work in the Transport 
Strategy. Previously, the City Region and local authorities have worked together as part of 
the Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) process, prompted by 
Government as a way for local areas to identify and prioritise investment in active travel 
infrastructure. It is a requirement of that process that SCR publishes its LCWIP plan by the 
end of 2019, however agreement has been reached to incorporate that within the new 
Active Travel Plan, which will seek to identify all key active travel corridors in the City Region 
where investment should be focussed.  
 

 2.4 To help guide the development of the Active Travel Plan, an Active Travel Advisory Board 
(ATAB) has been established. This will be chaired by Professor Steve Haake from Sheffield 
Hallam University and include a range of national and local cycling and walking 
organisations. The ATAB is important in reducing project risk by making sure that the project 
is in line with best practice on walking and cycling and includes the wider policy areas and 
benefits. It is also essential that the project is open to wider funding support beyond the 
transport sector. A Terms of Reference for this group is attached as Annex 1. In parallel with 
that strategic group, an office level group made up of local authority representatives will help 
shape the detail of the plan.  
 

 2.5 The project team and associated boards will also oversee and facilitate input the 
Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) business case process. The draft business case has been 
submitted on the 20th June 2019, with a final business case due in November 2019 
alongside detailed design business cases for each proposed initiative. For the active travel 
schemes included in TCF, it will be important these align with the overall Active Travel Plan 
being developed in parallel, and also meet the highest possible design standards to meet 
the Commissioner’s pledges. Minimum standards for Active Travel are important for two 
reasons: 
 

1. There are differing standards across the region although the needs and expectations 
of active travellers are the same. 

2. Much of the current infrastructure has not been successful in increasing active travel 
trips, this is particularly clear at junctions where active travellers do not have priority 
and suffer repeated delays and exposure to traffic danger.  
 

 2.6 The Commissioner is proposing that the basic minimum standards for infrastructure are 
agreed before a more detailed set standard are brought to this Board at the next meeting. 
This will help to ensure that active travel schemes being worked up for inclusion in the TCF 
business case are of sufficient quality. In the period between this meeting and next, we will 

Page 52



 

seek the expert guidance of the Advisory Board and work with partners to refine the 
standards. These are proposed to include:  
 

1. Continuous minimum widths for cycle tracks to include 3 and 4-wheel cycles and for 
footways to include wheelchairs. 

2. Separation of footways and cycle tracks from high volumes of traffic, high vehicle 
speeds (above 30mph) or significant amounts of large vehicles. 

3. Separation of highway footways from cycle tracks for significant distances. Shared 
use only to be used for placemaking and some off-road routes. 

4. Clear priority for active travel routes at junctions, continuing cycle tracks and 
footways straight across side roads and reducing crossing times. 

 
These basic standards are proposed primarily to reduce the actual and perceived danger 
that deters active travellers, but also to reduce the everyday delays that they suffer. The 
standards will also ensure that the network is fully accessible.  
 

 2.7 It is proposed that once adopted, these standards are used to as a basis for signing of future 
SCR funding for active travel schemes. As they were not in place prior to the submission of 
the tranche 1 TCF projects, which were awarded funding in April 2019, further discussions 
will need to be held with those project sponsors to try and seek the best possible fit for the 
criteria within the funding and timing envelope applied by Government. 
 

 2.8 Although Active Travel is primarily being addressed through transport functions it has wider 
links that are being explored. A key part of the strategy is to engage with stakeholders, 
particularly in health, sport, communities and business. We have started initial stakeholder 
mapping and we have started to build a contacts database and we would welcome any 
suggestions that board members have in suggesting contacts. The team are also exploring 
how best to engage communities and stakeholders in the process of improving active travel 
and will be bringing forward detailed suggestions to the next Board.  
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 The approach of minimum standards for active travel infrastructure has been used in 
Manchester and is now adopted by Sustrans who no longer have a design manual. For SCR 
to adopt a full design manual it would take a significant amount of time and resource and 
therefore not be in place for TCF programme. Design standards for cycling and walking are 
changing rapidly so it would be difficult to keep up to date and we have chosen to reference 
the best current manuals. We are also awaiting new national guidance from the DfT which 
should be published soon.  
 
The Active Travel Advisory Board will discuss the issues around this and this will be 
evidenced in the next TEB paper. 
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
£180k of Mayoral Capacity Fund is allocated to the active travel agenda. 
 

 4.2 Legal  
 
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report, however funding 
arrangements will need to be put in place with scheme sponsors for the delivery of active 
travel projects associated with the TCF process. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
 
The core approach of the programme is to reduce danger for active travel at source. Road 
danger is cited as the main reason for not cycling and having a safe and pleasant environment 

Page 53



 

for walking is a key consideration. There are also reputational risks involved in the active travel 
project in not delivering the pledges of the Mayor and the Active Travel Commissioner.  
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
 
The active travel project aims to be fully inclusive and this will be included in the Active 
Travel Implementation Plan.  
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 A multi-channel programme of communications is now underway on the theme of Active 
Travel, with the aim of informing and engaging members of the public and stakeholders. 
This has involved media engagement, the launch of new social media accounts, digital 
media, and two high-profile events; one held on 1 April to showcase Dame Sarah Storey’s 
appointment, and the Mayor’s Transport Conference on 9 May, which was attended by both 
Dame Sarah and Chris Boardman (Cycling and Walking Commissioner for Greater 
Manchester). 
Active Travel is also a key focus of Mayoral communications activity, both within the SCR 
and in Westminster. 
 

 5.2 There are 6 Active Travel Commissioners (SCR, TfGM, TfWM, London, Scotland, 
Merseytravel) and there was an inaugural summit in Manchester on Monday 17th June in 
Manchester. It was also attended by Dan Jarvis and chaired by the Mayor of Greater 
Manchester Andy Burnham. As part of the event the commissioners and their mayors all co-
signed a letter to government (addressed to the Secretary of State for Transport, Chris 
Grayling MP) which included the following: 

• Commitment to long term devolved funding for cycling and walking. 

• A political commitment to minimum quality levels. 

• Reform policing and enforcement and ensure the local retention of fines. 

• Enable innovation by keeping road traffic regulations under review. 

• Transport investment decisions should account for the true cost of car use to society 
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  Annex 1: Active Travel Advisory Board Terms of Reference 
 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR  Pete Zanzottera 
POST  Active Travel Project Director 

Officer responsible Mark Lynam  
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email Mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone 0114 2203445 

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 

 
 

Page 54

mailto:Mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


Annex 1 

Advisory Board for Active Travel (ABAT) 

Draft Terms of Reference 
This document is intended to lay out the way that the Advisory Board will function. It has been 

drafted by the Active Travel Project Director but will pass to the group itself and the chair. It will be 

reviewed annually and initially established to operate to March 2021. In the event of any dispute 

with the Active Travel Project Director, the matter will be passed to the Active Travel Commissioner 

and the SCR Director for Transport, Housing and Infrastructure. 

Purpose of the Group 
The purpose of ABAT is to advise and scrutinise the work of Sheffield City Region Active Travel 

Project and to hold it to account. It will do this by: 

 Viewing and feeding back on plans and progress on the overall programme 

 Requesting information from stakeholders 

 Requesting reports from the programme director 

 Supporting the work of the Active Travel Project Director through collaboration on funding 

proposals, projects and other activities 

Membership 
The advisory board will be contracted to Sheffield City Region and the permanent members will be: 

 Chair  

 Representative from Living Streets 

 Representative from British Cycling 

 Representative from Sustrans  

 Representative from Cycling UK 

 Representative from Yorkshire Sport 

 Representative from Health Sector 

 Representative from Youth Combined Authority 

 Representative from Disabled groups, or disability expert 

It will also be able to request attendance from experts although remuneration will have to be 

approved by the Deputy Chief Executive, Ruth Adams. 

The Active Travel Project Director will be expected to attend meetings or deputise to a member of 

the project team. The Active Travel Commissioner will also attend ABAT meetings according to their 

availability. In general, the group will be expected to come to agreement by consensus but, should 

anything be put to a vote, project staff, attendees and co-opted members will not have voting rights. 

Voting by email will be included for offline issues and providing a majority of the total voting 

membership approve, the issue will be carried.  

Frequency of meetings and remuneration 
We would like to maintain the independence of the group from the project, but the frequency of 

meetings will be as often as agreed with the Active Travel Project Director, as there may be financial 

implications.  

The group will be empowered to organise additional online or telephone meetings, or other 

meetings that have no financial implications. 

Page 55



Annex 1 

Conflicts of interest  
We will expect each member to fill out a declaration of interests form annually.  

We will expect group members to declare any conflicts of interest at the start of any business item, 

and to complete an annual form declaring any conflicts of interest. The chair will be expected to 

maintain the neutrality of the group by managing the interests of any of the members. Some of the 

groups represented on SCRABAT may want to bid for contracts that the project offers or may deliver 

some of the works of the project either through contract, charitable work, or other funding. We will 

of course welcome this, although their input to items where there is any conflict of interest will be 

managed. Any undue influence of the group to award contracts may also result in them being ruled 

out of being awarded such contracts. 

Confidentiality 
Some papers for ABAT will be confidential or draft internal project documentation and some 

documents will be embargoed until a defined date. Members of the Board will be expected not to 

give any information of this sort to wider circulation, although there may be occasions where they 

seek the expertise within their organisation. We will seek assurances from group members that they 

will not disclose confidential information. 

Should any member of the group disclose any confidential information they will be expected to 

notify the project staff immediately. Deliberate disclosure or serious breaches will result in that 

member being taken off any circulation lists and their access to information being removed until the 

matter is resolved. They will also be asked to surrender and delete any other confidential 

information that they hold. 

Conduct in meetings 
Although we expect challenge from ABAT group members we expect this to be within the 

boundaries of respect and good behaviour. Any breaches of this will result in suspension from the 

group and may lead to request for a different representative from the organisation, or ultimately the 

removal of representation. Any complaints from group members or others about the conduct of 

members of the advisory group will be dealt with in the first instance by the chair but should this not 

be resolved or appealed against then it will be dealt with by a committee of SCR officers. This will be 

the responsibility of the project director. 

Page 56



1. Introduction

1.1 Transport for the North (TfN) is a statutory body of elected leaders, and a partnership of 
business leaders, from across the whole of the North of England. All 20 Local Transport 
Authorities and 11 Local Enterprise Partnerships across the North are represented, along 
with the Department for Transport, Network Rail, Highways England and HS2 Ltd. 

1.2 Active engagement with TfN is crucial for the City Region to realise all of its transport 
needs, and so this report provides an update on recent activity across TfN’s programmes 
and seeks guidance on future priorities and engagement.  

2. Proposal and justification

2.1 TfN was originally established in 2015 and became a statutory body on 1 April 2018, 
building on collaborative working between the core cities across the North through the ‘One 
North’ alliance and in response to a call for the North’s towns and cities to come together on 
transport to support the economic rebalancing of the UK. The statutory powers that have 
been granted allow and require TfN to: 

• Develop and implement a Strategic Transport Plan for the North of England.

• Act as ‘one voice’ for the North, clearly communicating pan-Northern priorities to
the Secretary of State for Transport

Purpose of Report 

This report provides an update on the work of Transport for the North and the implications for the City 
Region.  

Thematic Priority 

Secure investment in infrastructure where it will do most to support growth. 

Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

The paper will be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme  

Recommendations 

That members of the Thematic Board: 

• Note the update

• Provide guidance on future priorities and engagement with Transport for the North.

TRANSPORT THEMATIC BOARD 

19th July 2019 

TRANSPORT FOR THE NORTH UPDATE 

Page 57

Agenda Item 11



 

• Coordinate and deliver smart ticketing systems across the North 

• Become a statutory partner in road and rail investment decisions, through the Rail 
North Partnership and Highways North Board 

• Oversee (jointly with the Department for Transport (DfT)) franchised rail services 
covering Northern and TransPennine Express franchises 

• Promote highways improvements of Northern significance, with the agreement of 
Government and relevant local transport and highway authorities 

• Prioritise investment on the transport network. 
 

 2.2 Annex 1 shows the Member boards that make up TfN, essentially comprising the 
following: 
 

• TfN Board and Rail North Committee – these are both decision-making boards 

• Partnership Board – this provides advice to the TfN Board 

• Audit & Governance and Scrutiny Committees – these perform similar functions as 
for the SCR and local authorities.  

 
The SCR is represented on the decision making boards by the Mayor, with Cllr Chris 
Read as his nominated deputy. Peter Kennan, representing the SCR LEP, is a co-opted 
(but non-voting) member of the TfN Board, with Alison Kinna as his nominated deputy. 
Both the Mayor and Peter are members of the TfN Partnership Board, and the SCR 
provides a further representative on the Scrutiny Committee. 
 

 2.3 Annex 1 also shows the current TfN Partner governance structure, headed by the TfN 
Executive Board. SCR is represented on this Board by the Director of Transport, Housing 
and Infrastructure, with the Assistant Director (Transport) as their nominated deputy. 
 

 2.4 As noted in the Introduction, the primary role of TfN is to develop a Strategic Transport 
Plan (STP) for the North of England – this was approved by the TfN Board in February 
2019 and launched formally in Sheffield on 11 February 2019. A summary of the STP 
itself is attached for information and represents the first time that the North has come 
together to articulate what is needed in transport to support economic growth.  
 

 2.5 The STP sets out the size of the economic prize – an additional 850,000 more jobs and 
£100 billion Gross Value Added by 20250 if the North’s transport infrastructure is 
improved. The focus of the STP is joining up key sectors across the North to reduce 
costs, improve reliability and widen supply chains and labour markets. The SCR was fully 
involved in its development and the approach taken is mirrored within the SCR’s own 
Transport Strategy. The first review/update of the STP is expected in 2021/22. 
 

 2.6 The STP is accompanied by an initial 30 year Investment Programme for Strategic 
Transport across the North, that sets out in four sections what interventions are needed to 
address current and future transport and connectivity issues. The anticipated cost of the 
Investment Programme as it stands is around £60-70 billion up to 2050, although it is also 
acknowledged that there needs to be a complementary increase in local transport funding 
to accompany this.  
 

 2.7 Again, the SCR was fully involved in the development of the initial programme and all of 
the SCR’s key priorities are included somewhere within it. It is intended that the 
programme is a ‘live’ document, with an update planned for early 2020. 
 

 2.8 The next update will be informed by further work on the seven priority ‘Strategic 
Development Corridors’ identified in the STP (see pages 18 and 19 of the summary). 
Much of our work to date has concentrated on the identification of future priorities for the 
Southern Pennines Corridor, which links the economic centres, industries and ports 
within Liverpool City Region, Greater Manchester, Cheshire, SCR, Hull and northern 
Lincolnshire.  
 

Page 58



 

 2.9 This is linked to the work currently being led by Highways England with TfN to investigate 
improved TransPennine connectivity, particularly an upgraded road connection between 
the SCR and Greater Manchester through the Peak District National Park. More 
importantly for the SCR, this work also considers improved links between the M1, 
A1/A1(M) and the M18. Should development work proceed to the next stage in the latter 
part of 2019, the SCR will need to influence these wider connections to ensure that they 
benefit the City Region as well as strategic, long distance traffic. 
 

 2.10 The SCR also has an interest in the work that has just started on the two east coast 
corridors and the West Coast to SCR Corridor that seeks to strengthen rail links  
between the advanced manufacturing sites in Cheshire East, Warrington, Cumbria, 
Lancashire, Greater Manchester and the SCR. This will be informed by work recently 
commissioned in the SCR to consider a number of possible rail line re-openings.  
 

 2.11 TfN’s flagship programme is Northern Powerhouse Rail (NPR) – see pages 12 and 13 
of the summary – a transformational programme of rail investment that will radically 
improve journey times and service frequencies between some of the major cities and 
economic areas in the North, which unlocks capacity and capability to deliver a much 
more effective rail network overall. 
 

 2.12 The Strategic Outline Business Case for NPR was agreed by the TfN Board in February 
2019 and submitted to DfT shortly afterwards. The NPR proposals include the following 
key elements related to the SCR: 
 

• Provision of the ‘Northern Loop’ from Sheffield to join HS2 Phase 2b at Clayton 
junction 

• Use of HS2 Phase 2b between Sheffield to Leeds 

• Capacity and linespeed improvements to the Hope Valley Line between Sheffield 
and Manchester over and above those currently committed 

• Capacity and linespeed improvements between Sheffield and Hull via Doncaster, 
including improvements at Doncaster station 

• New stations in South Yorkshire – at Barnsley Dearne Valley and a mainline 
station in Rotherham 

• Journey time and reliability improvements between Sheffield and Leeds via 
Barnsley.   

 
The next steps in the NPR programme are to identify a single preferred concept for each 
of the corridors within the network, leading to an updated business case in late 2020. The 
SCR needs to ensure that the single concept developed meets the needs of the City 
Region’s local rail network as well as regional and national connections. It will also be 
important to ensure that options for a more extensive package of works on the Sheffield to 
Manchester corridor remain open in case the preferred single concept does not move 
significantly towards the target journey time of 30 minutes.  
 

 2.13 Delivery of the NPR network will reduce journey times from Sheffield across the North, 
such as 40 minutes to Manchester, 28 minutes to Leeds (using the eastern leg of Phase 
2b of HS2) and 50 minutes to Hull (via Doncaster). Onward connections to York and the 
North East via HS2 and the East Coast Main Line (ECML) will bring Newcastle within 
around 80 minutes. It is estimated that over 100,000 more businesses and three million 
more people will be within 90 minutes’ reach of Sheffield with the completion of HS2 
Phase 2b and NPR. 
 
 

Page 59



 

 2.14 TfN continues to develop its Long Term Rail Strategy (LTRS), which sets out a set of 
agreed guiding principles for transforming the rail network across the North that the SCR 
helped to shape. The LTRS formed the basis of TfN’s recent response to the call for  
evidence for the Williams Review into the future of rail franchising as well as a more wide 
ranging look at how the rail industry operates. The development of future local rail  
investment programmes and future franchise specifications will be mindful of these 
principles, as will the work done with the SCR in relation to the Integrated Rail Plan.  
 

 2.15 TfN has identified a Major Road Network (MRN) which includes the North’s economically 
important roads (see pages 14 and 15 of the summary). This network, which includes 
both strategic and important local roads, represents about 7% of the roads in the North, 
and links the North’s important centres of economic activity. It includes the economically 
important roads in the SCR that link the urban centres and key growth areas identified in 
the Mayor’s Vision for Transport 
 

 2.16 In July 2019, TfN will be submitting a MRN Regional Evidence Base (REB) – its formal 
advice to Government as to its priorities for funding on the MRN up until 2023/24. In the 
SCR, this includes the Shalesmoor Gateway scheme (which includes the Penistone 
Road/Inner Ring Road and Penistone Road/Rutland Road junctions). This scheme has 
also been submitted as part of a Housing Infrastructure Fund bid. The REB also includes 
a ‘long’ list of schemes – four are in the SCR, including improvements to the A57, A628 
and A635. The SCR will continue to develop further proposals for those roads within the 
North’s MRN in the next year, particularly in relation to the A635 between Barnsley and 
Doncaster. This will ensure that the SCR is ready to put forward its key priorities to TfN 
when future calls for MRN schemes are made. 
 

 2.17 TfN’s Integrated and Smart Travel (IST) programme is an ambitious four year 
programme to widely introduce contactless payment for travel on public transport across 
the North (see pages 16 and 17 of the summary). This programme will transform the 
passenger experience in the North by working in partnership with the rail, bus and light rail 
sectors, and key transport organisations. SCR input to develop the proposals has been, 
and continues to be, provided by South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive 
Officers, building on the experience within the SCR on smart ticketing and better public 
transport information. 
 

 2.18 Overall, the SCR has had a very active involvement with TfN, both at a Member level and 
at an Officer level, and this should continue, with frequent updates and decisions being 
brought back to this Board as required. Key decisions likely to affect the SCR in the 
coming months include: 
 

• Submission of the REB for the MRN 

• Procurement of Phase 3 of the IST programme (which creates the ability for smart 
and integrated ticketing across the North) 

• Development of an Indicative Train Service Specification for the NPR programme 
– this will assume the types and numbers of services that will run post-opening 

• Completion of the high level business cases for the two east coast Strategic 
Development Corridors and the West Coast to SCR corridor 

• First update of the TfN Investment Programme. 
 
Influencing the development of the NPR network over the next 15 months, particularly 
given its relationship to the Integrated Rail Plan, will be crucial in the coming months, and 
so the Board’s views on how to best achieve this would be welcomed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 The only real alternative approach to that taken to date would be to reduce the level of 
engagement and involvement with TfN, but this brings a significant risk that the SCR’s 
influence on TfN will wane and that the SCR’s priorities will not be reflected in future TfN 
work programmes and updates of its STP and Investment Programme. 
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report. 
 

 4.2 Legal 
Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) is a constituent member of 
Transport for the North (TfN), with representatives on the relevant governance boards. 
 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
There are no direct risk implications as a result of this report. 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
There are no equality, diversity or social inclusion implications as a result of this report. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 SCR work closely with colleagues at TfN to promote and communicate issues of common 
importance. 
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  Annex 1 – TfN Partner Governance 
Annex 2 – Summary of the Strategic Transport Plan 
 

 
Report Author  Mark Lynam 

Post Director of Transport, Infrastructure and Housing 
Officer responsible Mark Lynam 

Organisation Sheffield City Region 
Email Mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 

Telephone 0114 2203445 
 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 

 
 

Page 61

mailto:Mark.lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



TfN Partner Governance
April 2018

Annex 1

P
age 63



Advisory Boards

Decision Making Boards

Partnership Board

Membership: 
Independent Chair
Constituent authority representatives
LEP representatives
DfT representative
Highways England representative
Network Rail representative
HS2 representative

Partner Officer Governance – See next 
page

TfN Partner Member Governance Informal Reporting

Formal Reporting

Rail North Committee

Membership: 
Constituent authority representatives
Additional Rail North Authorities outside of the TfN area

TfN Board

Membership: 
Constituent authority representatives
Co‐opted Independent Chair of the Partnership Board
Co‐opted additional Rail North Authorities outside of the TfN 
area
Co‐opted LEP representatives
Co‐opted Highways England representative
Co‐opted Network Rail representative
Co‐opted HS2 representative

Scrutiny Committees

Audit and Governance Committee

Membership: 
Member (Chair)
3 Members of TfN’s Board 
1 Member co‐opted from DfT
3 other co‐opted Members (roles to be recruited 
to supply required specialist skills) 

Scrutiny Committee

Membership: 
Constituent Authority representatives  

P
age 64



Comms and Engagement
Partner Member Governance – See 

previous page
Integrated and Smart Travel

Northern Powerhouse Rail Strategic Development

Northern 
Powerhouse 
Rail Working 

Group

Northern 
Powerhouse Rail 

Programme 
Board

Client 
Requirements 

Group

Strategic 
Transport Plan 
Programme 

Board

Northern 
Powerhouse 
Rail Sub‐
Groups

Strategic 
Development 

Corridor Programme 
Boards

Integrated and 
Smart Travel 
Programme 

Board

Major Road 
Network Group

Freight and 
Logistics Group

Funding 
Framework 

Steering Group

Integrated and 
Smart Travel 

Local Transport 
Advisory Group

Programme 
Benefits 
Review

Programme 
Risk Review

Programme 
Plan Review

IST Finance 
Review

Strategic Rail Officer 
Steering Group 

(previously Rail Officer 
Steering Group)

Technical 
Analytical 

Advisory Group

Highways 
North Board

Comms Partner 
Working Group

Innovation 
Working Group

Strategic Road 
Studies Boards

TfN Partner Officer Governance
Informal Reporting

Formal Reporting

Strategic Rail Partnership 
Board (previously Rail 

North Partnership Board)

TfN Executive 
Board

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



At a glance… 

Strategic 
Transport Plan

Annex 2

Page 67



2 3At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan

About Transport for the North 

We are England’s first Sub-National Transport Body, 
representing 20 transport authority members from across 
the North. With statutory status, we have the mandate 
to advise the Government on the transport priorities 
required to drive inclusive, sustainable economic 
growth across the North. 

The role of
Transport for the North
Our work complements that of existing 

local transport authorities, and our 

powers are devolved down from central 

government, rather than up from local 

government.

Our role is to add value, ensuring that 

funding and strategic decisions about 

transport in the North are informed by our 

local knowledge, expertise and needs.

Our Vision: A thriving North of 
England, where world class 
transport supports sustainable 
economic growth, excellent 
quality of life and improved 
opportunities for all.

Transport 
for the North 

Working with the Department for Transport and the North’s 
cross-border authorities, the pan-Northern investments will 
support enhanced connectivity across the UK.

National 
connectivity 

Managing and investing in local 
transport networks within economic 
clusters, such as investment in local 
roads, cycling, walking, and buses, and 
in some cases light rail. 

Setting out the case and priorities for 
connecting different economic clusters, ports, 
and airports across the whole of the North. 
TfN’s ‘blue print’ for road and rail investment will 
enhance strategic pan-Northern connectivity, 
complementing local transport investment to 
improve the ‘whole journey’.

Local Transport 
Authorities

The role of  
Transport for the North

P
age 68



Strategic
Rail

Connecting
People

Connecting
Businesses

Moving
Goods

Northern
Powerhouse
& UK Economy

Aims of
the Plan Inclusive &

Sustainable
Growth

Spatial
Planning

Analysis
& Appraisal

Strategic Transport Plan

Major Road
Network

Strategic
Development
Corridors

Funding

Skills

Innovation

4 5At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan

The Strategic  
Transport Plan 
The Strategic Transport Plan outlines 

the need for investment in transport 

across the North and identifies the 

priority areas for improved connectivity. 

Working together, with elected 

politicians, business leaders, and 

listening to feedback from our public 

consultation, we have outlined our 

vision for the future.  

 

The objectives of the Strategic 
Transport Plan are:

  Transforming economic performance

  Increasing efficiency, reliability, 

integration, and resilience in the 

transport system

  Improving inclusivity, health, and 

access to opportunities for all

  Promoting and enhancing the built, 

historic, and natural environment

Aims of the Strategic Transport Plan

Connecting people

Improving access to leisure 
and tourism assets and 

work opportunities, whilst 
widening the labour market 

for businesses.

Connecting business

Improving connections to 
collaborators, clients and 

competitors, including 
those within the prime and 

enabling capabilities.

Moving goods

Supporting businesses to 
move freight and goods 

efficiently and across modes.

P
age 69



6 7At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan At a glance... Strategic Transport PlanPrime and 
Enabling Capabilities

Enabling

Advanced manufacturing

Major Northern Ports

Minor Northern Ports

International Airports

Energy

Health innovation

Digital

Prime and 
Enabling Capabilities

Enabling

Advanced manufacturing

Major Northern Ports

Minor Northern Ports

International Airports

Energy

Health innovation

Digital

The Northern Powerhouse Independent Economic Review identified four areas 

where the North is highly skilled and globally competitive. The North stands on the 

cusp of the fourth industrial revolution and is ready to lead the world in modern 

industries, such as our four ‘prime capabilities’ and three ‘enabling capabilities’. 

The Strategic Transport Plan aims to enhance connectivity between these 

economic clusters.

Why   The need for change?   

The North is home to around 1.1 

million businesses, more than 7.7 

million jobs, and over 15 million 

people, with population growth of 

6.7%. The North’s economy is around 

£343 billion, 19% of the UK total. If the 

North were a country, it would be  

the 27th largest in the world. 

However, overall productivity in 

the North still trails behind the UK 

average. The North’s economic 

value per person (measured as 

GVA) has been consistently around 

15% below the average for the rest of 

the UK. More recent data reveals that 

gap has widened further, with the 

economic value (GVA) per person 

in the North now 18% below the UK 

average. 

The success of the UK in the 

global marketplace depends on 

rebalancing the national economy 

and transforming the North. 

The Northern Powerhouse 

Independent Economic Review 

identified some of the key factors 

that contribute towards the economic 

gap between the North and the 

South, including; poor links and 

under investment in transport, a lack 

of collaboration between Northern 

economic centres, and underuse 

of innovation and technology. The 

Strategic Transport Plan aims to 

address these factors by ensuring 

people and businesses are well 

connected.

The Review sets out a bold vision 

of economic transformation for the 

North that will rebalance the UK 

economy and increase international 

competitiveness. A transformed North 

in 2050 could generate:

  £97 billion (15%) increase  

in GVA. 

 850,000 additional jobs.

  4% higher productivity than in  

a business as usual scenario.

P
age 70



Inclusive and sustainable growth   

Transport is social infrastructure which provides opportunities 

for all users. We recognise that successfully delivering inclusive, 

healthy and sustainable growth is dependent upon protecting 

and renewing the high quality environment in the North. We aim 

to minimise the impact of transport on the historic and natural 

environment and will seek to deliver enhancements and 

environmental net gain where possible. 

The transport network must be decarbonised to support a shift to a 

low carbon economy. We support the series of Government policies 

and proposals for a greener and cleaner transport network in order 

to meet the UK’s legislated carbon emission reduction targets.  

We want to work with the public and private sector to see:

  A zero carbon public transport network by 2050.

  Decarbonisation of rail by 2040.

  A rapid increase in the number of public charging points for 

electric vehicles across the North.

We cannot achieve a carbon reduction from transport on our own; 

this is a collaborative effort. As part of our commitment to develop 

an Inclusive and Sustainable Growth Framework, we will lead the 

scoping, development and implementation of a ‘Pathway to 2050’.  

8 9At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan

Future transport demand for a 
transformed North 

East–West connectivity is a significant barrier for future growth in 

the North, and a key constraint to agglomeration and transforming 

the North’s economy. Transformational economic growth in the 

North would also be expected to lead to far-reaching changes in 

transport demand and travel patterns compared to today.

We are promoting a ‘vision and validate’ approach, where 

alongside local transport authorities and Government, we can 

actively shape and influence how people travel to meet our joint 

economic, transport, environmental, and social objectives.

By 2050:

  Total demand for rail travel could be four times higher,  

with up to around 760 million trips per year.

  Total demand for road travel could be 54% higher, with around 

193 billion vehicle kms travelled per year.

P
age 71



10 11At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan

Rail  
Northern Powerhouse Rail  
A transformational programme of 

rail investment that will radically 

improve journey times and service 

frequencies between some of the 

larger economic centres in the North, 

which unlocks capacity and capability 

to deliver a much more effective rail 

network overall.

Long Term Rail Strategy
Investment in lines, stations, services 

and franchises to deliver greater 

connectivity, capacity and cost 

effectiveness. Sets out why change 

is needed, what that change should 

be and how that change should be 

delivered, with an ambitious vision for 

the transformation of the North’s rail 

network.

Roads
Major Road Network for  
the North
Through the Major Road Network, 

we have identified the roads across 

the North that are vital for economic 

growth and are evaluating how 

best to strengthen this network and 

facilitate access to our most important 

economic places and gateways.

Smart  
Integrated and Smart Travel 
The introduction of contactless payment 

for travel on public transport across the 

North. Bringing enhanced real time service 

information, journey planning tools and a 

simplified pricing structure, the programme 

is transforming the passenger experience 

by working in partnership with the rail, bus 

and light rail sectors, and key transport 

organisations.

Local and 
Sustainable 
Transport
Delivering transformational, inclusive 

economic growth will require 

complementary and supporting 

investment at a local as well as a pan-

Northern level for the ‘whole journey’. This 

means targeting short trips that could be 

undertaken by public transport, cycling 

or walking, thereby reducing localised 

congestion, improving the environment, 

and supporting an improved transport 

system.  

We fully endorse the National Infrastructure 

Commission’s proposals for a significant 

uplift in funding from 2025 onwards for 

Devolved Cities and Non-Urban local 

transport, and also potentially National 

Parks, that will go some way to closing the 

current gap between the need for local 

transport investment. 

What   Key areas 
of delivery

P
age 72



Long Term Rail Strategy   

The Long Term Rail Strategy sets out our guiding principles 
for transforming the rail network.

  Connectivity – Major improvements in connectivity including 

frequency and journey time improvements for both passenger 

services and  freight, combined with better integration of services.

  Capacity - Providing longer trains and additional services to 

meet existing and future passenger demand, with improvements 

to the infrastructure and signalling capability to accommodate 

these additional services.

  Customer - A passenger network that is easy to navigate, 

accessible and predictable, with consistent information available 

before and throughout journeys.

  Community - A railway that supports the social fabric of the 

communities it serves, providing journey opportunities which 

enable access to education, training and leisure opportunities as 

well as employment, and plays a full part in addressing transport 

poverty, isolation, and deprivation across the North.

  Cost Effectiveness - Growing revenue and minimising the unit 

cost of operating and maintaining the North’s railway without 

compromising the quality of the services offered. 

We want to see as a minimum:

  All passenger routes to be served by a minimum two 

trains per hour. 

  Long distance services to achieve average journey 

speeds of at least 80mph.

  Inter-urban services to achieve average journey 

speeds of at least 60mph.

  Local and suburban services to achieve average 

journey speeds of at least 40mph.

  Rail to directly serve each of the North’s international 

airports.

  Infrastructure to be available to enable a weekday 

inter-peak level service on Sundays and public holidays.

  Major ports in the North to be served by a network that 

will support movement and future growth of rail freight.

  A 50% improvement in the average speed of freight 

services by 2028.

12 13At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan

Northern Powerhouse Rail 

Northern Powerhouse Rail is a transformational 
programme of rail investment that will radically 
improve journey times and service frequencies 
between some of the major cities and economic 
areas in the North, which unlocks capacity and 
capability to deliver a much more effective rail 

network overall.

Our analysis shows that the wider benefits of 
Northern Powerhouse Rail include:

  Bring millions more people, and hundreds 
and thousands of businesses within reach 
of each of the key economic centres of 
the North by public transport. By 2050 in a 
transformed North, nearly 10 million people 
in the North will be within 90 minutes reach 
of multiple economic centres in the North. 
  Help treble the number of businesses able 
to access four or more cities or Manchester 
Airport within 90 minutes, from 70,000 today 
to 260,000 with Northern Powerhouse Rail. 
  Deliver significant benefits to the North’s 
economy and rebalance the UK by closing 
the productivity gap between the North 
and the rest of the country. 
  Ensure that growth is delivered sustainably, 
building the market for rail travel by around 
four times the level seen today and 
taking up to 64,000 car trips off the road – 
equivalent to 800 million km per year.

We firmly believe HS2 will be transformational 
for the North. It will be a key piece of world 
class infrastructure integral to the expansion 
of the existing rail network and it will support 
the regeneration of railway stations and their 
surrounding areas. It will also support the 
delivery of Northern Powerhouse Rail, which 
will free up much-needed North-South and 
East-West capacity in a system that is struggling 
to perform.

Northern Powerhouse Rail - 
upgrade line

Northern Powerhouse Rail  - 
new line

Linking Liverpool to HS2

TransPennine Route Upgrade

HS2 line

Existing line

Northern Powerhouse Rail  
hub station

Junction at Manchester Piccadilly to support Northern Powerhouse
Rail platforms4

Junction on HS2 mainline for Leeds – North East services1

Junction on HS2 Leeds spur to facilitate through services via existing
Leeds station2

Junction on HS2 mainline for Sheffield – Leeds services3

Junction on HS2 Manchester spur for Manchester – Liverpool services5

South facing junction on HS2 mainline for London – Liverpool services6

Northern Powerhouse Rail junctions with HS2:

Largest Intermediate Stations

Northern Powerhouse Rail - 
upgrade line

Northern Powerhouse Rail  - 
new line

Linking Liverpool to HS2

TransPennine Route Upgrade

HS2 line

Existing line

Northern Powerhouse Rail  
hub station

Junction at Manchester Piccadilly to support Northern Powerhouse
Rail platforms4

Junction on HS2 mainline for Leeds – North East services1

Junction on HS2 Leeds spur to facilitate through services via existing
Leeds station2

Junction on HS2 mainline for Sheffield – Leeds services3

Junction on HS2 Manchester spur for Manchester – Liverpool services5

South facing junction on HS2 mainline for London – Liverpool services6

Northern Powerhouse Rail junctions with HS2:

Largest Intermediate Stations

Alternative concepts will continue to be assessed between Liverpool – 
Manchester, Manchester – Sheffield and Manchester – Leeds as part of 
taking forward the Strategic Outline Business Case for the programme. 

Map shows only railway lines which interact with Northern Powerhouse Rail.

The Department for Transport and HS2 Ltd are also assessing concepts for 
a HS2 parkway serving South Yorkshire.

P
age 73



Journey reliability – journey 

reliability where 90% of journeys of 

15 miles or more on the Major Road 

Network should not be delayed by 

more than 15 minutes for a journey 

of 60 minutes expected travel time.  

Network efficiency – aiming 

to optimise the efficient flow of 

passengers and goods on the 

Major Road Network and through 

the improved flow of traffic, and 

support for new technologies to 

reduce emissions of pollutants 

and greenhouse gases.

Network resilience – aiming to 

reduce the number of incidences 

of closure of Major Road Network 

routes leading to severe 

journey delay.

Journey quality – improving the 

customer experience of using the 

Major Road Network, including 

the quality and availability of 

travel information.

We will also explore options for reducing the impact of road-based travel 

on the environment, air quality and carbon emissions. Through influencing 

travel behaviour, supporting higher quality design and adapting to 

innovative technologies, such as electric vehicles, the Major Road Network 

can be improved, managed and adapted to support a sustainable 

Northern economy.  

14 15At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan

Roads – Major Road Network for the North      

Over 80% of commuting trips and 87% of 

freight movements use the road network 

in the North, which equates to more than 

120 billion km travelled across the North’s 

road network every year. 

We have identified a Major Road 

Network which includes the North’s 

economically important roads. This 

network, which includes both strategic 

and important local roads, represents 

about 7% of the roads in the North, and 

links the North’s important centres of 

economic activity.

The Major Road Network for the North 

is larger in scale than the Major Road 

Network proposed by the Department 

for Transport. This is primarily because 

it is based on improving connectivity to 

deliver economic growth and improved 

opportunities for all, whereas the 

Department for Transport has chosen 

to define the England-wide Major Road 

Network on a more quantitative basis, 

primarily based on a measure of traffic 

flow and proportions of heavy good 

vehicles.

MRN

MRN as part of SRN

Current Economic Centres

Future Economic Centres

Enterprise Zones

The ambition is for 

the Major Road 

Network in the 

North to act as a 

seamless network 

of roads, enabling 

safe, reliable and 

resilient multi-

modal journeys.

We have agreed that the performance of the Major Road 

Network will be measured against outputs, including:      

P
age 74



Integrated and Smart Travel   

The Integrated and Smart Travel 

programme is an ambitious four-

year programme to widely introduce 

contactless payment for travel on 

public transport across the North. 

This programme will transform the 

passenger experience in the North 

by working in partnership with the 

rail, bus and light rail sectors, and key 

transport organisations.

At the moment, four out of every five 

travellers use paper tickets, while only 

one in ten use tickets on their mobile 

phone. Meanwhile, 78% of all debit 

cards are now contactless, and nine 

out of ten passengers use rail travel 

primarily to commute to work on a 

regular basis. These facts highlight 

the opportunity for this ambitious 

programme.

Customers can already use a 

smartcard, contactless bank card 

or their smartphone to pay for travel 

on some public transport in the 

North. Using emerging technologies, 

the Integrated and Smart Travel 

programme will deliver modern 

payment methods and mobile travel 

information right across the North, 

in line with what passengers now 

want and expect from today’s public 

transport system. Paying for journeys 

will become quicker, easier and more 

convenient.

16 17At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan

Key phases
Phase 1 
Smart cards for rail 
by December 2018
Part of a nationwide
programme to
roll out smart
ticketing on 
all rail travel.

Phase 2
Customer information, 
collaboration and 
innovation
Provision of integrated 
customer information, 
disruption messaging 
and fare information 
to make journey 
planning quicker 
and easier.

Phase 3
Account-based ticketing via 
contactless payments
Back office integration that 
will let travellers make
contactless payments
across all forms 
of public transport,
while delivering
the best on-the-day
price for customers
and public transport
operators.

A

B

C

CREDIT

£20.00

FAIR
PRICE
PROMISE

DELAY

!

Journey  planning
First the customer  decides 
which  journey to make.

Tap on
They then hop on their 
chosen public transport 
with a tap.

Ticket  selection
Then they decide  whether 
to buy a ticket in advance, 
a ticket for multiple journeys, 
or simply pay as they go.

Tap off
When they arrive,  they 
simply tap  again and 
carry  on with their day. 

Planned  disruption
If there’s any  disruption they’ll 
know about it, and be able to 
plan around it by using an 
alternative transport mode with 
the same payment method.

Fair Price Promise
They can trust they’ll be 
charged the best price for 
 all their journeys when it’s 
calculated at the end of the 
day or week. 

Our overall goal for the programme is a simpler 
and easier end-to-end customer journey

Smart
XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX

i

P
age 75



E

G

A

F

B

C

D

  Connecting the Energy Coasts, 

improving connectivity between some 

of the UK’s important non-carbon 

energy, advanced manufacturing, 

research assets and economic centres 

in Cumbria, Lancashire, North Yorkshire, 

the North East, the North of Tyne, and 

Tees Valley;

  Central Pennines, driving strategic 

east-west connectivity for some of the 

North’s important economic centres and 

assets in North Yorkshire, West Yorkshire, 

East Riding, and Hull through to Greater 

Manchester, Lancashire and the 

Liverpool City Region; 

18 19At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan

  Southern Pennines, linking the 
economic centres, industries and ports 
within Liverpool City Region, Greater 
Manchester, Cheshire, Sheffield City 
Region, Hull and northern Lincolnshire. 
Also considering connections with 
the Midlands;

  West and Wales, moving people 
and goods, to, from and through 
the important economic centres and 
assets of Cheshire West and Chester, 
Cheshire East, the Liverpool City Region 
and Greater Manchester with strategic 
connectivity in to North Wales and 
the Midlands; 

  East Coast - Scotland, improving rail 
reliability, speed and reach along the 
East Coast Main Line and other key 
lines to provide enhanced strategic 
and local connectivity in the North 
East, the North of Tyne, Tees Valley, 
Sheffield City Region, City of York, and 
North Yorkshire as well as onward 
connections into Scotland;

  West Coast - Sheffield City Region, 
strengthening rail links along the West 
Coast corridor between the advanced 
manufacturing sites in Cheshire East, 
Warrington, Cumbria, Lancashire, 
Greater Manchester and Sheffield City 
Region, with improved connectivity from 
the North in to Scotland;  

  Yorkshire - Scotland, building on 
existing road investment commitments 
to further strengthen road connectivity 
between the Midlands, Sheffield City 
Region, East Riding, West Yorkshire, 
North Yorkshire, Tees Valley, the North 
East, the North of Tyne, and Scotland. 

The Corridors

Connecting the Energy Coasts

Central Pennines

Southern Pennines 

West and Wales

East Coast – Scotland 

West Coast – Sheffield City Region

Yorkshire – Scotland

A

D

B

E

C

F

G

Strategic Development 
Corridors      

Using an innovative approach, we’ve 

identified seven strategic development 

corridors that reflect economic links across 

the North. They are not traditional transport 

corridors but represent where the largest 

gaps between demand and performance 

currently exist, and where there is likely to be 

the most potential for realising the benefits of 

connecting the economic assets and clusters 

of the North. 

Each of the Strategic Development Corridors 

will have a different scale of contribution 

towards achieving the outcomes of 

transformational economic growth and 

therefore different transport needs. However, 

investment in all the corridors is critical to the 

collective ambitions of Transport for the North 

and Partners.

P
age 76



Spatial Planning     

We want to build a collaborative and 

constructive relationship with the 72 

planning authorities across the North 

to ensure that the right sustainable 

developments, spaces and places 

are unlocked and delivered across 

the North to support Local Planning 

Authorities as they develop their local 

plans and strategies. The principle of 

joined-up planning for new homes 

and infrastructure has long been 

acknowledged at a national level 

and is a key element of the 

Government’s Industrial Strategy. 

We will also work through 

existing partnerships and networks 

to ensure that there is long-term and 

coordinated strategic infrastructure 

investment in the North, linked to 

spatial planning priorities and their 

infrastructure needs. 

Part of the success of the Strategic 

Transport Plan and the Investment 

Programme will be how it supports 

sustainable settlement patterns and 

urban centres, and how they contribute 

to the creation of inclusive, healthy and 

productive spaces and places. Funding  

The Investment Programme which 
accompanies this Strategic Transport 
Plan identifies a funding requirement 
of £60-£70 billion to 2050, or £2-
£2.3 billion a year, to be spent on 
strategic transport infrastructure to 
deliver the interventions required 
to support transformational 
economic growth. Considering 
current projected spend, primarily 
through the Highways England Road 
Investment Strategy and by Network 
Rail, this equates to an additional 
£21-£27 billion investment to achieve 
the improvements set out in the 
Investment Programme over the 
lifetime of the Strategic Transport Plan. 
The interventions within the Investment 
Programme are ambitious but realistic. 

In the short term, we will need to 
work with current processes. We 
are seeking to move to the position 
where we become responsible for a 
combined regulatory settlement for 
strategic transport investment in the 
North.  

Analysis and Appraisal   

As the Strategic Transport Plan sets 

out, we require strong evidence 

and analysis to make the case 

for transformational investment 

in the North’s strategic transport 

network. Working with Partners 

and the Department for Transport, 

we’ve made significant progress 

in developing a new Analytical 

Framework. The new framework 

combines a series of existing 

analytical models and new tools 

to enable us to undertake a 

broader, more comprehensive 

analysis including an examination 

of multi-year uncertainty and wider 

economic impacts. 

This framework can be applied 

across the North, so that there is 

one voice for data, forecasting and 

investment decisions. We also want 

to embed sustainable return on 

investment and social value in the 

procurement and development of 

on any transport intervention.

20 21At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan

Innovation 

We want to harness innovative measures and 

encourage smart technology to support the 

delivery of our pan-Northern objectives. By 

embracing innovative solutions now, we can 

influence future infrastructure and transport 

connectivity captured by long term planning. 

Future mobility will likely be achieved through the 

combination of technology trends such as shared 

mobility, automated and connected systems 

and electrification (or other low carbon energy 

options), with a focus on integration of energy 

systems, public transport, and infrastructure.

To ensure our plans are informed, challenged, 

and pro-active but flexible to the latest innovation 

changes and uncertainties, we will continue to 

collaborate with a variety of stakeholders. 

How?

P
age 77



22 23At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan At a glance... Strategic Transport Plan

Skills 

Improving education and skills to support 

economic prosperity is a priority at a 

national and local level. Based on the 

current educational pipeline there will be an 

estimated annual shortfall in engineering 

skills. There will be high demand across 

some key skills sets and high competition 

across sectors.

We will work closely with delivery agencies 

as well as the broader transport industry 

to ensure a joined-up approach to skills. In 

delivering the Investment Programme, the 

focus will be on maximising social value for 

local areas, a sustainable pipeline of skills, 

and diversity within the workforce.

Investment Programme 

The Investment Programme comprises our advice to the 
Government on what the long term, multimodal transport 
priorities are.

The initial Investment Programme identifies the interventions 
that we believe will address the current challenges on the 
transport network, future proofing for where transport demand 
is envisaged, and where the interventions will stimulate 
inclusive, sustainable and transformational economic growth. 

The successful delivery of the Investment Programme will 
require continuous close working with our Constituent Authority 
Partners, the national Delivery Partners (Highways England, 
Network Rail, and HS2 Ltd) and the Government. It will 
be dependent on the approval of funding at the
appropriate time. 

The Investment Programme will be an evolving document, 
beyond this initial version. Future iterations will outline the 
progress on the current schemes and projects and could 
include additional interventions should future evidence 
identify they are required. The Investment Programme can 
be found at transportforthenorth.com/onenorth

P
age 78



Manchester

Transport for the North 
2nd Floor 
4 Piccadilly Place 
Manchester 
M1 3BN

Leeds

Transport for the North 
Ground Floor  
West Gate  
Grace Street  
Leeds  
LS1 2RP

engagement@transportforthenorth.com0161 244 0888

transportforthenorth.com
© Transport for the North | February 2019

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



1. Introduction

1.1 For over 20 years, Supertram has been connecting high numbers of people to jobs,
education, shopping and leisure in Sheffield and beyond. Making over 12 million 
passenger journeys a year, it plays an important role in the wider public transport network 
within the Region and is recognised as an attractive, reliable and efficient mode of travel. 
The tram system reduces congestion, helps improve air quality, and potentially could play 
an important part in future plans to better connect residents and businesses to our urban 
centres and major housing, retail, leisure and employment sites within the Sheffield City 
Region. 

1.2 A 2014 study found that after more than 20 years of continuous operation, parts of the 
existing tram network and vehicles are approaching the end of their working life. Whilst 
ongoing general maintenance costs are paid for by the current tram operator 
(Stagecoach), there is no funding currently in place for the long-term renewal of the 

Purpose of Report 

To advise Board members of progress to date on the operation and long-term renewal of the 
Supertram asset in South Yorkshire. 

Freedom of Information 

 A – the paper will be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme 

This paper may be released under a Freedom of Information request. In this section, it must be clear if 
the paper has any exemption under Part II of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (the report author 
must specify which exemption applies and why). 

Recommendations 

Board members are asked to: 

1. Note the background information on the development of the Supertram network and its current
performance.

2. Note the progress made to date on the development of the Outline Business Case (OBC)
seeking funding from government for the renewal of the asset.

3. Give their views as to the options being considered, the financial aspects of the options
described and the approach to identifying and securing a local contribution to the capital costs.

TRANSPORT THEMATIC BOARD 

19 JULY 2019 

SUPERTRAM UPDATE 

Page 81

Agenda Item 12

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/36/part/II


 

system. Investment is therefore needed to allow the Supertram network to operate for at 
least another 30 years, and central government funding will be required to support this. 
 

 1.3 In October 2018, a tram-train pilot service commenced operation between Sheffield 
Cathedral and Rotherham Parkgate. This pilot (the first of its kind in the UK), funded by 
DfT, is testing the use of tram-train technology on a light rail system to evaluate its 
potential use elsewhere. It makes use of a shared section of network rail track between 
Tinsley and Rotherham Parkgate, running on the same tracks as heavy rail services. 
Three services per hour operate between Sheffield and Rotherham, with stops at 
Rotherham Central and Parkgate. 
 

2. Proposal and justification 
  

 2.1 The Supertram network plays a fundamental role in supporting the economy and residents of 
South Yorkshire. It provides a key means of connectivity to allow people to travel to work, 
education and for leisure purposes. In doing so, it contributes to reducing traffic congestion 
and improving air quality, providing a zero-emissions transport network capable of moving 
customers within the region. 
 

 2.2 The current network commenced construction in 1991 and opened for use in 1994. The 
asset has subsequently worn over time and as it now approaches the end of its economic 
life it is in need of investment to allow the network to continue beyond March 2024, the date 
at which the current concession operation ends with Stagecoach. 
 

 2.3 In order to secure funding for the large-scale renewal of the network, the process of 
developing a business case to submit to DfT commenced in 2016/17 and since then, SCR 
and SYPTE have continued to actively engage with DfT on the preparation and submission 
of the Outline Business Case (OBC) for the renewal of the Supertram network between 
2024 and 2028. This business case includes the renewal of all signalling and track-side 
systems, significant improvements to the depot and the replacement of the current 25 fleet 
of trams with 28 brand new vehicles. The OBC is expected to be submitted to DfT for 
approval in October 2019. 
 

 2.4 The development of the OBC is almost complete and will be submitted to DfT after it has 
been approved by the Combined Authority (CA) along with confirmation of the region’s 
commitment to find a local contribution to match the Government’s funding ask.  
 
However, this was based upon the expectation that the Government funding contribution 
would come from DfT’s Local Large Majors (LLM) programme. It was expected that 
following a submission in October 2019, the project would receive ‘Programme Entry’ by 
March 2020 with a Full Business Case submitted by April 2022. The LLM funding pot no 
longer exists, with Government diverting projects that were on the LLM pipeline onto other 
programmes, such as Transforming Cities Fund (TCF). A recent meeting with DfT 
confirmed that projects such as Supertram renewal do not have a ‘home’ elsewhere within 
another DfT programme i.e. there is no other existing funding stream which could fund the 
renewal project. 
 
It has therefore been agreed that a direct approach to Treasury (supported by DfT), as part 
of the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) process as the most appropriate means of 
securing the necessary funding. This is in keeping with the approach taken recently by 
Nexus (the Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport Executive) for the renewal of their Metro 
train fleet. 
 

 2.5 Current performance and patronage on the network has varied over time. The network 
experienced positive growth in its early years, growing from 2.2m in its first year to almost 
12m by 2000/01. It peaked at 15m 2010/11 and again in 2011/12, only to start to drop from 
2012/13, in part as a result of re-railing work. Latest figures indicate around 11.5m journeys 
made annually. 
 

Page 82



 

 
 
The Outline Business Case assumes patronage growth from 11.5m trips per year (18/19 
excluding tram train) 12.3m in 2023/24 (again excluding tram train), a growth of 
approximately 2% per annum. Beyond 2024 the OBC assumes no growth to 2028 as a 
result of disruption by the renewal work. The transport model is then being used to populate 
the OBC with generated forecast patronage for future years. We also recognise the success 
criteria targets set out in the SCR Transport Strategy 2019 which aim to increase tram 
patronage by 47% by 2040 and will undertake work to assess the deliverability of this target 
on the outputs from the transport model. 
 
Punctuality and reliability on the network has largely remained positive in terms of overall 
performance, with current punctuality at 94% and reliability at 99%. However, as we have 
seen on the Nexus network, they saw a rapid year on year decline in their fleet performance 
as it approached the end of its economic life which had a detrimental effect on patronage 
and hence financial sustainability of the system as a whole. At what point the Supertram 
network may start to experience a rapid fall in performance is as yet difficult to forecast. 
 

 2.6 Whilst the OBC will deal with the large-scale investment required to renew the asset, the 
region has already invested in replacing sections of worn rail over a recent number of years. 
A programme of rail replacement commenced in 2013 to 2015 and again from 2018 to 2020. 
The combined value of this work is £32m. 
 

 2.7 The renewal of the asset is also considered essential should the region look to exploit and 
expand the current network beyond its current operations. Success of the tram-train pilot 
could indicate that this technology can be applied to extend services to other parts of the 
region, such as Waverley/AMID, Barnsley or Doncaster.  
 
Tram-train is also expected to provide capacity alleviation from the heavy rail network 
resulting from Transport for the North (TfN) Northern Powerhouse Rail (NPR) Programme. 
NPR will require some local train service demand to switch to tram and tram-train to allow 
sufficient capacity services to operate through Sheffield Midland Station which will act as the 
regional hub. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 The Supertram network requires considerable investment were it to be renewed to allow it 
to operate until at least 2054. Without this investment, the region is faced with some broad 
options; 
 

1. Agree a delayed renewal whereby elements were fixed on an as required basis and 
the current fleet of tram vehicles were refurbished to allow longer use. 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

1
9
9

4
/9

5

1
9
9

5
/9

6

1
9
9

6
/9

7

1
9
9

7
/9

8

1
9
9

8
/9

9

1
9
9

9
/0

0

2
0
0

0
/0

1

2
0
0

1
/0

2

2
0
0

2
/0

3

2
0
0

3
/0

4

2
0
0

4
/0

5

2
0
0

5
/0

6

2
0
0

6
/0

7

2
0
0

7
/0

8

2
0
0

8
/0

9

2
0
0

9
/1

0

2
0
1

0
/1

1

2
0
1

1
/1

2

2
0
1

2
/1

3

2
0
1

3
/1

4

2
0
1

4
/1

5

2
0
1

5
/1

6

2
0
1

6
/1

7

2
0
1

7
/1

8

2
0
1

8
/1

9

J
o
u
rn

e
y
s
 (

m
)

Supertram Patronage

Page 83

https://transportforthenorth.com/northern-powerhouse-rail/


 

2. Wholesale closure of the network from 2024, decommissioning the network and 
returning the sites to either normal highway or made good for other uses. 

3. Replace the current rail-based tram network with a Bus Rapid Transit network with 
equivalent coverage. 

 
 3.2 A delayed renewal assumes the existing trams are refurbished from 2024 and renewed 

approximately 15 years later. This has an impact on the phasing of capital investment is 
different from the renewal option (the cost of replacing the current trams with new vehicles 
between 2024 and 2028 is currently forecast at £105m) but there are also differences in 
operating costs and revenue. 
 

 3.3 Closing the network in its entirety would result in private sector bus operators looking to 
pick up opportunities by providing more bus services in the areas previously served by 
trams, but these would be funded from fares, i.e. there would be no public-sector funding.  
The whole costs associated with decommissioning and reinstatement would be borne by 
the public sector and are estimated at £147m to 2028 (excluding commuted sums). 
 

 3.4 The option to replace the current tram network with a Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) network 
has not been progressed beyond the initial appraisal as it is understood to be prohibitively 
expensive as it requires the decommissioning and removal of the current tram 
infrastructure and replaces it with bus-based infrastructure. 
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
 
If the preferred option of renewal 2024-28 is pursued, the capital cost up front is 
c.£408m (including inflation). By way of context, the OBC has also had to consider 
alternative options, including the option to close the network. In comparison, the cost of 
closure is anticipated to be around £147m to 2028, the full costs of which would be borne 
by the region. Government would not contribute to the closure. 
 
We also need to allow for c.£8m of costs for the Full Business Case (FBC), for which DfT or 
Treasury won’t provide any funding, however these costs would count toward our local 
contribution target. Hence, total ‘upfront’ capital cost currently estimated at £416m (including 
inflation). 
 
Further into the future, post renewal, it is expected there will be lifecycle costs of c.£244m 
(based on 5% inflation) post-2028 would be required through to 2054 (e.g. future re-
railing). Unless we can negotiate additional support (e.g. a capital maintenance subsidy), 
our working assumption is that these lifecycle costs would not be covered by DfT funding, 
so we will need to source funding from elsewhere, e.g. from future years’ profits on the 
Supertram network. Future years’ profits are contingent on significant patronage growth. 
 
It would still be expected by Government, that as part of a direct CSR submission, a local 
contribution is still found. Discussions with DfT, based upon the contribution provided in the 
Nexus scenario, suggested a figure closer to 7-10% ‘might’ be acceptable (Nexus 
contributed 7%). 
 
Based on the total costs of c.£408m, a 7-10% local contribution would therefore be in the 
range of £29-42m, which would include the £8m costs for the FBC. It is prudent to assume 
a ‘worst case scenario’ and therefore officers have been modelling options for how the £42m 
can be achieved in theory from combining several funding sources. 
 

 4.2 Legal 
 
Consideration needs to be given as to the operating model deployed in 2024 to operate 
the network when the current concession with SYSL expires. Early marketing testing has 

Page 84



 

commenced as to the interest from other operating companies who may be considering a 
future bid to operate the network.  
 
There is however risk associated with letting a concession from 2024 which requires the 
operating company to take revenue risk during a period of around four years where there 
is expected to be significant operational disruption from the renewal works required 
(upgrading the depot, new power and control systems, overhead line equipment, 
substations, signalling and commissioning of new vehicles). There may be an option 
therefore to operate the network through a revised model whereby operations are returned 
“in-house” for a period of time until a renewed network is ready to be let on a concession. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
 
The development of the Outline Business Case is being managed as a formal project and 
as such has the appropriate risk management controls in place to manage project delivery. 
A Quantified Risk Assessment (QRA) has been undertaken on generic risks across options 
to understand the financial risk in variations to the assumptions and costs involved in 
renewing the asset. This has produced a risk value of £45m within the cost plan. 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
 
This paper does not contain any specific equality, diversity or social inclusion 
considerations. 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 A detailed communications plan supports the development of the OBC. We are also 
developing a stakeholder engagement approach to better engage with and generate 
support from the business community in South Yorkshire following discussions with Nexus 
as to their approach to use the benefits of the public transport network to local and regional 
employers as a mechanism of endorsement for the continuation of the service. 
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  None. 
 
 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR   
POST   

Officer responsible Tim Taylor, Director of Customer Services 
Organisation SYPTE 

Email tim.taylor@sypte.co.uk 
Telephone 0114 2211202 

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 

 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



SYPTE Transport Executive Board 
DashboardP

age 87

A
genda Item

 13



Number 
crunch 2019: 
Urban 
transport 
trends in 
changing 
times

How people 
respond to 
the 
experience 
of bus travel 
and the 
implications 
for the 
future of bus 
services

How can we 
support 
towns like 
Batley?

Executive Summary Commentary
We continue to closely monitor the local position of First Bus South 
Yorkshire given the group announcement in May to sell its UK Bus 
Division and the impact this may have on the local market. This is 

further exacerbated by First lodging an appeal with the DfT on our current ENTCS 
reimbursement agreement, stating that it was not fit for purpose. We are in active 
discussions with First SY senior managers as to options on both ENCTS and Child 
reimbursement funding which are affordable to us and provide them with 
appropriate income.

In response to the May 2018 timetable failures, the DfT launched a 
review, led by independent chair Keith Williams, to call for evidence 
from across the rail industry on reducing future disruption, 
improving accountability and to consider future regional 

partnerships. The call for evidence closed on 31 May and a joint response for our 
Region was submitted by SYPTE and SCR which included eight recommendations 
on infrastructure investment, rolling stock and capacity improvements and 
ensuring improved local accountability.

TfN Integrated and Smart Travel Programme is in an important phase 
of its development. TfN have received strong letters of commitment 
from a number of bus, rail and tram operators for their Account 
Based Back Office Ticketing (ABBOT) scheme. However, the letters 

from the large group bus operators all contain conditions of endorsement which 
rely on volume and costs being acceptable. As a result, Programme board going to 
look at options as there may be an option to develop the ABBOT solution and 
deploy it on a region by region basis.

We have followed closely the outcomes of the investigations in to 
the collisions at Staniforth Road and more recently a fatality of a 
pedestrian after a collision with a tram on West Street. At Staniforth
Road the primary cause were drivers not adhering to a red light. SYSL 

have reduced speed over the junction and Amey have completed their planned 
signal replacement. RAIB were satisfied that the West Street incident was outside 
of SYSL’s control.

Bus

Tram

Rail

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

 8,000,000

 9,000,000

 10,000,000

P1 P3 P5 P7 P9 P11 P13

 700,000

 800,000

 900,000

 1,000,000

 1,100,000

 1,200,000

P1 P3 P5 P7 P9 P11 P13

 400,000
 500,000
 600,000
 700,000
 800,000
 900,000

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9 P1
0

P1
1

P1
2

P1
3

2016/17 2017/18

2018/19 2019/20

P
age 88



Bus Commentary
We are in the process of finalising a number of tendered service contracts which 
require renewal across the region. These include a number of commercial network 
and school services. A total of 73 tenders, or lots, were issued in March to replace 
a number of expiring school and network contracts, commercial service 
withdrawals and additional school services from 1 September 2019. The Corporate 
Communications team have commenced planning for stakeholder 
communications to be issued from week commencing 15 July.

We are developing Transforming Cities funding packages with district colleagues 
which contain a number of schemes which benefit bus services. These are 
expected to include bus priority interventions, BRT schemes as well as the 
development of a zero emission bus trial in the region. A draft version of the bids 
were submitted to DfT on 20 June with final business cases ready for end of 
November.

Transport Focus have published their annual Bus Passenger Survey results. The 
region scored 86% overall satisfaction with bus journeys (down 1% on prior year), 
with VfM at 69% (up 2%), punctuality at 76% (up 3%) and journey time at 83% (up 
1%). 

Total patronage for the year ending 31 March 2019 shows a reduction of 5.3% or 
4.9m compared with the year ending 2017/18.  This comprises a reduction of 7.6% 
(4m) in fare payers, 4.9% (1.3m) in ENCTS and an increase in child passengers of 
2.7% (381k). 

TimelinePunctuality

83.1%
Reliability

98.1%

Jan '19 Mar '19 May '19 Jul '19 Sep '19 Nov '19
✔Electric Bus Feasibility Study
Fri 30/11/18 - Fri 29/03/19

Retail Stagecoach Products on TVM
Mon 03/12/18 - Fri 27/09/19

✔Transforming Cities Fund Draft Bid Submission
Fri 15/02/19 - Thu 20/06/19

Transforming Cities Fund Final Bid Submission
Thu 27/06/19 - Thu 28/11/19

✔Future Mobility Zone Bid Submission
Thu 23/05/19

September Service Change
Sun 01/09/19

Today

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

 8,000,000

 9,000,000

 10,000,000

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9 P10 P11 P12 P13

Bus Patronage by Period by Year

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

P
age 89



Tram Punctuality

96.27%
Tram Reliability

99.62%
Tram‐Train Punctuality

96.07%
Tram‐Train Reliability

95.05%

Tram Commentary
Patronage on Tram Train reached 500,000 journeys in the first six months of 
service. It also achieved a 100% customer satisfaction survey rating from the Tram 
Passenger Survey run by Transport Focus.

Tram punctuality is at 96.27% and Tram Train is at 96.07%. Reliability for Tram was 
99.62% and Tram Train at 95.05%. Fleet performance is still some way short of 
required with a Mean Distance Between Failure (MDBF) of 4,658km (2,894 miles). 
The Tram Concession Manager has asked Stadler for their improvement plan.

This year’s programme of rail replacement commenced over the Easter weekend 
and are due to run through to the end of August. During the early phase of these 
works, 3 cracks were found in the rail that Volker Rail were joining. These cracks 
will need to be removed. The wider programme is running to plan and services are 
resuming for the weekend of Tramlines festival to improve transport to the site in 
Hillsborough Park.

We are currently working with Stagecoach Supertram and Volker Rail to try and 
understand the cause of the rail breaks as the number we have had on the system 
is unprecedented. We have had a break removed from the University tram stop 
area and independently examined by Serco which identified some defects in the 
weld process used. We have therefore requested a meeting with Volker to discuss 
liability for this and other failures.

Timeline
Jan '19 Mar '19 May '19 Jul '19 Sep '19 Nov '19

Supertram Rail Replacement Phase 2 Year 2
Fri 19/04/19 - Fri 30/08/19

Mass Transit OBC Submission
Mon 03/12/18 - Thu 24/10/19

✔Transforming Cities Fund Draft Bid Submission
Fri 15/02/19 - Thu 20/06/19

Transforming Cities Fund Final Bid Submission
Thu 27/06/19 - Thu 28/11/19

✔Future Mobility Zone Bid Submission
Thu 23/05/19

Today

 700,000

 800,000

 900,000

 1,000,000

 1,100,000

 1,200,000

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9 P10 P11 P12 P13

Tram Patronage by Period  by Year

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

P
age 90



Rail Commentary
In response to the May 2018 timetable failures, the DfT launched a review, led by 
independent chair Keith Williams, to call for evidence from across the rail industry 
on reducing future disruption, improving accountability and to consider future 
regional partnerships. The call for evidence closed on 31 May and a joint response 
for our Region was submitted by SYPTE and SCR which included eight 
recommendations on infrastructure investment, rolling stock and capacity 
improvements and ensuring improved local accountability.

The eight year franchise for East Midlands trains transfers from Stagecoach Group 
to Abellio on 18 August 2019. SYPTE and SCR are planning to meet with Abellio in 
July in advance of the transfer of the franchise operations.

A meeting to review the Askern station feasibility study is planned for 11 July 
between DMBC and SYPTE. This follows an assessment made by ARUP in 
December 2018.

SYPTE Rail team recently arranged for volunteers from Bentham Line Community 
Rail Partnership to deliver a ‘Dementia Awareness for the Railways’ session to our 
frontline staff, local community groups and Train Operating Companies.

The session covered a wide range of topics relating to dementia, from recognising 
the signs and different types of dementia, to understanding how to manage 
behavioural shifts. The group took away some valuable tips from this session and 
hope it better enables our teams to assist and communicate with passengers who 
live with dementia – helping to make their journey as stress‐free, and safe as 
possible.

Timeline
Jan '19 Mar '19 May '19 Jul '19 Sep '19 Nov '19

✔Askern Railway Station Feasibility 
Study
Fri 30/11/18 - Mon 11/03/19

✔Transforming Cities Fund Draft Bid Submission
Fri 15/02/19 - Thu 20/06/19

Transforming Cities Fund Final Bid Submission
Thu 27/06/19 - Thu 28/11/19

✔Future Mobility Zone 
Bid Submission

Thu 23/05/19

✔Northern Timetable 
Change

Sun 19/05/19

Northern Timetable 
Change

Sun 15/12/19

Today

On Time

53.01%
PPM

82.23%
Cancelled/Significantly Late

2.91%

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

 700,000

 800,000

 900,000

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9 P10 P11 P12 P13

Rail Patronage by Period by Year

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

P
age 91



Infrastructure Commentary
Rotherham Interchange re‐opened (A and B platforms only) on Sunday, 3 March 
2019. Customer feedback has been positive. We have however experienced a 
number of delays in opening the remaining C platform and car park. We planned 
to reopen at the start of April which was delayed and at the time of writing (early 
July) we have still to issue practical completion on the site. We are still hopeful 
that the car park at least can be opened in the very near future given the impact 
on lost revenue.

We have completed a number of refurbishment works at Meadowhall 
Interchange. This includes painting of both bridges and the atrium as well as 
resurfacing parts of the footbridge to prevent slips and falls. We are preparing the 
project to refurbish the customer toilets on site during 2019.

We have received and evaluated tenders for the on‐street and interchange 
advertising contract with Clear Channel which expires in October 2019. We have 
yet to award but if the preferred bidder is awarded the contract it provides up to 
£600k P.A. additional income than worst case assumptions at the time the notice 
was served by Clear Channel.

In preparation for Noonan contract expiry in March 2021, we are commencing in 
Q1 2019/20 the work required to understand what specification outputs are 
needed in a future contract to inform our procurement approach.

Timeline

0

100000

200000

300000

400000

500000

600000

700000

M
ar
 2
01

7

Ap
r 2

01
7

M
ay
 2
01

7

Ju
n 
20

17

Ju
l 2
01

7

Au
g 
20

17

Se
p 
20

17

O
ct
 2
01

7

N
ov
 2
01

7

De
c 
20

17

Ja
n 
20

18

Fe
b 
20

18

M
ar
 2
01

8

Ap
r 2

01
8

M
ay
 2
01

8

Ju
n 
20

18

Ju
l 2
01

8

Au
g 
20

18

Se
p 
20

18

O
ct
 2
01

8

N
ov
 2
01

8

De
c 
20

18

Ja
n 
20

19

Fe
b 
20

19

M
ar
 2
01

9

Ap
r 2

01
9

Interchange Footfall

Arundel Gate Barnsley Doncaster Dinnington

Hillsborough Meadowhall Rotherham Sheffield

Jan '19 Mar '19 May '19 Jul '19 Sep '19 Nov '19
Rotherham Interchange
Fri 30/11/18 - Sun 21/07/19

Meadowhall Interchange Toilet Refurbishment
Mon 01/04/19 - Mon 02/12/19

Advertising Contract Renewal
Thu 01/11/18 - Tue 24/09/19

✔Transforming Cities Fund Draft Bid Submission
Fri 15/02/19 - Thu 20/06/19

Transforming Cities Fund Final Bid Submission
Thu 27/06/19 - Thu 28/11/19

Today

P
age 92



Customer Services Commentary
March saw an increase in call demand resulting from the service changes and 
reopening of Rotherham Interchange. Call handling time also increased in March 
as a result of service changes. Subsequent call volumes for Q1 have reduced and 
hence performance of the percentage of calls answered (PCA) is averaging at 
82.88% for the quarter against a target 82%. We are planning ahead for specific 
event‐generated demand (e.g. city centre cycling in Sheffield) and in anticipation 
of call volumes peaking again in September due to service changes.

Pass application volumes have remained consistent throughout Q4 and in to early 
Q1, though we are now seeing a ramp up in applications in advance of summer for 
school passes (11‐16 and 16‐18). For 16‐18 Travel Passes, we are now at 81% of 
the eligible population holding the card.

First ticket sales on Ticket Vending Machines continue to perform strongly with 
12,800 sales and a value of £428,000 for a full year, generating £21,000 
commission. We still plan to go live with Stagecoach and Supertram products in 
September, though this date has slipped from June.

TravelMaster launched their eCommerce (online retail) platform on 7 April; 
customers can now purchase from their website and fulfil via Android mobile 
phone. Initial sales volumes look promising though we will need to monitor the 
impact of sales being abstracted from our Ticket Vending Machines. Apple have 
also indicated that they will allow NFC to be used for this purpose on their devices 
in the near future so this could open the market up further.

Timeline

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

N
ov

‐1
8

De
c‐
18

Ja
n‐
19

Fe
b‐
19

M
ar
‐1
9

Ap
r‐
19

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
n‐
19

Pass Applications

Paper Online

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

Ju
n‐
18

Ju
l‐1

8
Au

g‐
18

Se
p‐
18

O
ct
‐1
8

N
ov

‐1
8

De
c‐
18

Ja
n‐
19

Fe
b‐
19

M
ar
‐1
9

Ap
r‐
19

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
n‐
19

Call Performance

Offered Answered

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000

P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9 P1
0

P1
1

P1
2

P1
3 P1 P2 P3

First Bus TVM Sales

Jan '19 Mar '19 May '19 Jul '19 Sep '19 Nov '19

Relaunch sypte.co.uk website
Mon 01/04/19 - Mon 22/07/19
Updated Complaints Process and 
Customer Charter
Mon 01/04/19 - Fri 12/07/19

Retail Stagecoach Products on TVM
Mon 03/12/18 - Fri 27/09/19

Customer Services Week 2019 Commences
Mon 07/10/19

Today

P
age 93



Finance Commentary
The revenue budget outturn for Quarter 4 was £59.09m against a budget of 
£59.42m (i.e. £330k underspent).

During Quarter 4 no significant periods of adverse weather were experienced and 
as a result the patronage reported by operators was higher than planned in the 
budget. Periods 10 to 13 saw the patronage swing from 0.56% below budget to 
0.84% over budget for the full year. This combined with the higher reimbursement 
rates mentioned previously has created a full year over spend on ENCTS of £406k.

Negotiations with operators regarding child concessions reimbursement rates, 
driven by average fare inflation, were completed in Quarter 4 of 2018/19 and the 
full year overspend of £165k recorded.

Pressures on the concessions budget remain in to 2019/20, with discussions with 
First on their child and ENCTS reimbursement arrangements continuing. The three 
year deals with First and Stagecoach for ENCTS end in March 2020 so a revised 
arrangement for both operators is required in advance and as part of budget 
setting for 2020/21.

Savings in Operational Departments, which had been expected to be corrected 
during the final quarter largely continued, ending the year with a £669k 
underspend.

A number of technical accounting adjustments, particularly in respect of land and 
buildings valuations and pension liabilities, have been made to the management 
accounts to form the publicly available statutory accounts. Although the 
underlying budget performance is unchanged, the effect of these adjustments is 
to distort the reported surplus/deficit.

Risks

12 Month 
Budget
(£m)

Out turn 
Forecast
(£m)

Variance to 
Budget
(£m)

Variance 
to Budget
(%)

Variance to 
prior period
(£m)

Q1 59.4 59.4 0 0.1% ‐
Q2 59.4 58.8 0.6 1.0% 0.6
Q3 59.4 59.0 0.4 0.7% (0.2)
Q4 59.4 59.1 0.3 0.5% (0.1)

Actions 
Due

Actions 
Completed

Actions 
Deferred

Q1 26 11 0
Q2 22 11 0
Q3 15 4 7
Q4 18 12 6

SYPTE 2018/19 Budget

Corporate Governance Actions

5, 6%

45, 55%

32, 39% High

Medium

Low

P
age 94


	Agenda
	5 Governance Terms of Reference
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	6 Centrally Managed Local Transport Programmes
	Appendix 1

	7 Update On The Bus Review
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	8 Transport Strategy Implementation Plans
	9 Integrated Rail Plan
	10 Active Travel Update
	Annex 1

	11 Transport for the North Update
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	12 Supertram Update
	13 SYPTE Transport Executive Board Dashboard



